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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk
may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any
obligations to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of
companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM
mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website operated by
the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted
newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM website

in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.
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Financial Summary

BB E
For the year ended 31st March,
BE=ZA=+—HLEE
2001 2002 2003 2004
—EEF —ETR-F —ET=F —E2ENF
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK’000
FET FET FHE T FET
RESULTS ES
Turnover = 41,890 152,918 258,431 299,896
Profit before taxation B 351 A1 % A 1,998 35,807 61,424 78,780
Taxation WA (460) (4,100) (3,411) (4,024)
Net profit for the year F A 48 A 1,538 31,707 58,013 74,756
Dividends s - (10,000) - (5,890)
At 31st March,
R=A=+-—H
2001 2002 2003 2004
—TTE-F ZETF ZTT=F | —2THNF
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
FHET FET FET FER
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEMBE 8,645 31,789 134,647 275,146
Total liabilities BEHARE (8,829) (10,266) (8,960) (12,388)
Shareholders’ funds REES (184) 21,523 125,687 262,758

Notes: The results for each of the three years ended 31st March,
2003 have been prepared on a combined basis as if the
group structure immediately after the group reorganisation had
been in existence since Tst April, 2000.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETE®RS

Dear Shareholders and Directors,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31st
March, 2004 to the shareholders.

OPERATING RESULTS
The Group has achieved remarkable results in terms of research
and development, manufacturing, distribution and trading of
energy-saving light source products, thus enabling the gradual,
smooth attainment of the Group’s
targeted sales and earnings. Turnover
and profit attributable to shareholders
amounted to approximately
HK$299.90 million and HK$74.76
million respectively, representing an
increase of 16.04% and 28.86% over
last year. The Group is so proud that
since the Group’s embarking on
research and development in its core
products, among competitors
producing the same products, the
production cost of the Group has
strong competitive advantage. Thus
allow the Group to enjoy a steady
gross profit margin, and an optimistic
development prospect.

Year 2003 was a challenging year for Hong Kong's economy in
general. The outbreak of the Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome
(SARS) in the region worsened the already weak economy in
Hong Kong for the year under review. Meanwhile, market
competition in certain lighting product segments has also got
more intense. However, with the success of the Group’s cost
control and marketing efforts to sell Tungda brand products,
the Group is able to maintain a competitive cost advantage
and to increase its gross profit margin from 35.52% to 38.52%.

HK International Lighting Fair 2003
&8 BB A 7 /R 2003

EUBRRRES:

AABRREFS ([EFE]) ARRMARZ
AEBBE_TTNF=-_A=+—HLFEZ
FiRe

REBRHE £EHHE HERREEHENLR
EmAEAKELEA - BRI P B IR
EMBAEZE - EXBRREEMLRFDBL
299,900,000 7T & 74,760,000/%
TR B EAFEKI6.04%K
28.86%° 2 AB TR B RNEEHEE
NERZBRAL BEBRFED
AEEMLESR AEETEEERE L
EHERNBEFEY ENERES
FRFAE-AFFAAREEFAENE M
ERAREEEBN-

TR CF EARAREKERERE - NEEF
E BANRERESUTRRRLEE ([FEEA
fhk]) SEBLES ENB-RE &5TRAE
BT RFNBEI-BENY FEAEE
BREMEHK AR TER N ERRANREE
M AEESUERBEARF WNKRAES H
E &K IR 35.5201% = 38.5200 °

R K H & B B & 2 R A R 24 7
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE®RSE
BUSINESS REVIEW XBEE
Since listing in 2002, the Group has dedicated resources to AEEE_ZEZE_FLFHUAK —EERKEAER
develop and supply the market with innovative, high quality REERATSHERE IO LIREM-
energy-saving light source products. The Group’s commitment REBRARBEIE MERBESIERER 7
in research and development and its strategic cooperation NERERBE e TREPZ2EE-

enables the Group to expand its product offerings to cater for
the needs of different customers.

During the year 2003/04, the
Group has participated in many

AEER-_TT=/ZTNFEL2HEZ @R
RRARES REFRUAZIZ BTN
EFHEERCEERE UM AEENE
NEREZRE HTmERERDESNDE
S N BRI AR N E T
TEEMGHES SRR TEHERAR
HMEANEEESE BREFRENEE R
M5 RBEE

international lighting fairs which
provided us with invaluable
opportunities to promote our
products to potential new
customers from around the
world. In addition, the Group
received excellent press
coverage that our brand and
products were featured in trade
journals and international
lighting magazines. The Group

has also conducted various
marketing initiatives including

running a two-months’ publicity drive on the «F AR e
Prass Confarence

Mass Transit Railway to enhance our brand &

awareness and recognition in the market.

AEE E — NS F  BGE Lighting
ST LR -_BEME — B EREGE
LightingZ £ 58 A it BB & B 2 B 5
SHE BAEEBERZIBEER
IR R 12552 5 [ BLGE LightingX
Ty EEA ER &

Being GE Lighting's distributor since
1996, the Group was proud to be
appointed by GE Lighting as its exclusive
distributor for lighting fixtures in Hong
Kong and Macau in January, 2004. The
appointment enables the Group to
expand its product offerings to include
lighting fixtures and also symbolizes our
successful long term cooperation with GE

Lighting.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Chairman’s Statement

ETE®RS

The Group has been actively seeking capable distributors to
expand its sales and distribution network. In the year 2003/
04, the Group has successfully signed up distributors in the
U.S. and Canada, and has been in discussion with potential
distributors in some Asian and European countries.

In meeting needs of different customers, the Group has

dedicated resources in

research and development of
new products. In the year
2003/04, the Group has
completed the development
of low-wattage and high-
wattage induction lamps and
entered the final development
stage of automobile HID
xenon lamps and microwave
sulphur lamps. With increasing
awareness of environmental protection
and energy conservation, the Group
believes these new products would
increase the competitiveness of
its product offerings.

In line with the Group's strategy
to strengthen its production
capability and capacity, the Group
has established a new plant in
the PRC. Located in Xianyou
County, Fujian province, the PRC,
the Phase One facility of the new

Microwave Sulphur Lamp
plant accommodates the wwme

induction lamp production line

that was completed in March, 2003. Equipped with advanced
equipment and technologies, and excellent technical personnel,
the Group believes the new plant provides the Group with
unparalleled edge for future development in the lighting market
that lies in the application of new technologies, production
with economies of scale and low costing.

AEE-ERBYVEENEENDHE BERE
HEMDHEBR-R_FTT= THUFE X&
B ESEERMNEAMML D B INE I A
MomMEBNE R BE D HEETTER-

REATREPFER AEEBEBRKRAZERTR
EREHER- N _TT=/"ZTHUFE ~&£H
TRABELESREGELE MREETER
= BESR B8 TN E MR B MR AR B TR A SR P B o
BEERRNEEERMBIE AREREHEMA
ERAMTERZIHEF -

Induction Lamp

B 1T & O

Automobile HID Xenon Lamp
VB SR e E

%EEL\KEIBD%;E%&EFﬂZ%W'E@E
A B EE L RS - # s % —

REEN_—_EZ=F=_AFEK EPR ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
B2 EER-ARERE BELCERBRK
- MEEFOEMAR MIBEEESEEHE
HHRELED BERNERKEREM EHER
BEERBRANEEZRATIZRRERM-

R K o4 & B 8 # B 8 R & 7
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®SE

PROSPECTS

With the increasing awareness of the “Tungda” brand and the
establishment of its new plant in the PRC, the Group believes

that the competitiveness of Tungda's products has been greatly

enhanced. In the year 2004/
05, Tungda will continue to pay
attention to research and
development so as to supply
the market with value-added,
innovative high quality energy-
saving light source products. We
will also dedicate resources to
strengthen our distribution
network locally and globally,
and to market our products
effectively through these
channels.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
all the Directors and staff for their continuous support,
dedication and contribution to the Group, as well as
shareholders and business partners for their full support and

confidence in the Group.

Chu Chien Tung
Chairman

15th October, 2004
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN®R DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating Results

For the year ended 31st March, 2004, the Group's turnover
was approximately HK$299.90 million, representing an increase
of approximately 16.04% from HK$258.43 million last year.
This increase in turnover was mainly contributed by the
increased demand for the Group's house brand light source
products and new customers from North America and Asia, as
resulted from the Group’s successful marketing efforts to
enhance its brand awareness and market recognition, and its
quality assurance standards to deliver high quality products to
customers.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31st March, 2004
has increased to 38.52% compared to 35.52% for the same
period in 2003. The improvement is attributable to the increase
in amount and proportion in sales of house brand light source
products that usually give higher gross profit margin as
compared to agency brand light source products.

Bt 7% B B

REEE

HE_TTNF-A=-1+—BLLFE AEEE
¥4 A299,900,0008 T BR_EE=F 2
258,430,000 TG IN4716.040% - EEFEIWRE Y
TERAARAEBE ZHERBRINEAHRE
MEERTHERZME N EAEEGERERE
BELAMELPRNBEER QIEXRS DX
BERZFERTEHERE MAREILEMRIMNE
2 FrE P INE TG e

BHE-_ZZNF=-_A=+—HAULFEEZEMNX
FE38.5200 « —EZT=FFHRIA35.520  EF|
EEATBERENE -—RERKESEXRE R
BHARFGEARER 2 HEBRIEELH
HEANERT BLe

Other Operating Income
The major component of
other operating income
was interest income which
was  approximately
HK$0.73 million for the
year ended 2004 as
compared to approximately
HK$0.25 million for the
same period in 2003. The
increase was accounted by

Hih 8% WA
EHmEERAETE
BRANBRA-ZEE
MEE 2 FERA
#) &730,000/ 7t
—EZT=FRHHL
#) 5250,000/ 7t
HIBTTHREE B
Re RRITHE 78
e e

the higher cash and bank
balance for the Group.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

The selling expenses amounted to approximately HK$8.19
million during the year ended 31st March, 2004, as compared
to approximately HK$10.02 million for the same period in
2003, which were primarily comprised of advertising, exhibition,
business promotion and travelling expenses. The amount
decreased because of the completion of significant contracted
advertisement and promotion expense in 2003 which does
not recur in 2004.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 iR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREBF@WRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Selling and Administrative Expenses (Continued)

The administrative expenses comprised primarily of directors’
and staff remuneration, business trip expenses, entertainment
and rental expenses, which increased to approximately
HK$23.30 million due to increased business activities, as
compared to approximately HK$14.61 million in the
corresponding year in 2003.

Research and Development Expenses
The research and development expenses amounted to
approximately HK$6.00 million in 2004, as compared to
approximately HK$5.84 million in the corresponding period in
the previous year, which comprised of the cost of research
and development of new products such as
low and high wattage induction lamp,
microwave sulphur lamp and automobile
HID xenon lamp.

Net Profit

As a result of the factors discussed above,
the net profit attributable to shareholders
for the year ended 31st March, 2004
increased to approximately HK$74.76
million from approximately HK$58.01
million for the same period in 2003.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31st March, 2004, the Group's shareholders’ funds
amounted to approximately HK$262.76 million (2003:
HK$125.69 million). Cash and bank balances was approximately
HK$139.49 million as at 31st March, 2004, compared to
HK$86.34 million as at 31st March, 2003. Increases in cash
stemmed primarily from HK$49.5 million and HK$14.9 million
net proceeds received from the placing of share and exercise
of share option of the Company in September 2003 and
February 2004 respectively and income generated from
operations. The Board believes that the Group has adequate
funds to support its operations and capital expenditures for
future expansion and development.

As at 31st March, 2004, the Group had no outstanding bank
borrowing (2003: HK$953,000). The Group's gearing ratio,
defined as the Group's total borrowings to the shareholders’
funds, was zero (2003: zero).

MEERE (&)

HERTHEAX (&)

THRAXTEREESREIFM ZKE &

MRk AREBEHILL TR
£#923,300,0008 L M_EE=FRAHROA

14,610,000/ Jt °

MEAX

ZETMF 2 ERZ A A6,000,000% 7T (F
FEERZEERL RS FLERELE BURHER
FEASBRRENREMESHTERZINAN) £
F R HEBI4 A 5,840,000/ 7T °

#h 7

EREamamBEE #E
—ETMFE=-RA=+—H1t
FEZBRREGAFNB-F
T = F A H#14958,010,000/%
JUIE & #774,760,000/%8 JT °

RBES VRERRELERE

R_ZEENF=A=1+—H FrEEZ2RRE®
4 # 262,760,000 T (Z T T = F :
125,690,000/ L) M —_EEWMF=ZF =+ —
H R MRITAETLA139,490,000/8 7T A
—EE=F=A=4— ElﬁlJi%8634oooo,%no
ReEFEZREARRADIRZZEZT=FA
AR ZZFEZTNF = Hﬁaﬁﬂﬂ/ﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂﬂéﬁﬁ
18 FXIAEF 58 49,500,000 7T & 14,900,000 JT
HEEEBMBURA-EZSHE AEBER
WESYRHHEKCERTERRBERRERE
ZERREE -

EA_JT\Z\EE A=+t—R KAEEREREE
RITER(ZTT=5:953,00087C) - AEEZ
BEABLX (AAKEERAERERRES Y
HR)RE(ZET=F:F)-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREF@WR DN

RESPONSE TO AUDITORS’ OPINION

In view of the fact that the Group’s auditors were unable to
form an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group as at 31st March, 2004 and of the profit and cash
flows of the Group for the year then ended and, as to whether
the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the directors wish to state that the
audit committee comprising all the independent non-executive
directors of the Company had promptly engaged an external
international accounting firm to perform additional tasks that
were specifically designed to address issues in relation to the
audit raised by the auditors to the audit committee. The scope
of the additional tasks had been copied to, reviewed and
commented by the auditors prior to the engagement of the
external international accounting firm by the Company. Under
the direct supervision of the audit committee, such external
international accounting firm conducted independent checking
on the particulars of business transactions of the Group in
connection with the matters for clarification raised by the
auditors. In addition, under the supervision of the audit
committee, the Company obtained both Hong Kong and PRC
legal opinions to address issues in relation to the audit raised
by the auditors to the audit committee and no adverse concerns

were raised.

ElEZEEAMER
ERNAERERBORERVEBRREETEER
RPHRRARRRAEER —_FTTMF=A
ST -RAZMBIRREREEREEZRALFE
ZaMERERE WRHHRREESRETE
NREAGPIZBRERETEEHREREHER EF
FUBRARAAATEBBYFRATESFENZ
ERZZ BRI BERKR S ETHRITREI
T BMREAMZBMAEZZE R A
REBEEZEE-ARAREEIMNEER S
TR CRZEBM2XZERIITHFEEE KLH
mERSERFLHFR - EEZZESEREER
T ZFIMNEBEIR G EH AN 1T B Bh A% A% BRAM AT IR
BEEE HAKEEBRXZHBETELR
Lot REZZEGZEE T ARFIERE
BSHREMIL ERER  ARIE A BZ AR
ENZEeRIEZEARZAE EFLER
[Ep=R A

Opening ceremoney of Fujian
production site
BELEREFHEHE

Part of Induction
Lamp Production
Line

5 EER

Exhibition
in Germany
rEHEEEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREBF@WRE DM

RESPONSE TO AUDITORS’ OPINION (Continued)

The directors wish to clarify the following matters based on
the extensive findings of the external international accounting
firm, and the Hong Kong and PRC legal opinions:

1. With regard to the validity of approximately
HK$67,105,000 deposits paid and included in the
balance sheet as at 31st March, 2004 and the amount
of capital commitments disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment, the amount was supported by verifiable
evidence, including (1) contracts; (2) receipts from
suppliers; (3) official VAT invoices for three sets of
relevant equipment already delivered to the Group's
plant in Fujian in April and May, 2004; (4) confirmations
given by the suppliers directly to the auditors; (5)
confirmations with the details of the transactions from
the suppliers directly to the external international
accounting firm; and (6) inspection of the suppliers’
work-in-progress at respective suppliers’ sites and
inspection of completed equipment at the Group's plant
in Fujian by the external international accounting firm.
The external international accounting firm took
considerable efforts in collecting, reviewing and analysing
such evidences. Having reviewed the findings in the
external international accounting firm’s report and the
Hong Kong and PRC legal opinions, the audit committee
concluded that there was no irregularity, impropriety or
illegality in connection with the transactions and the
directors are of the view that the deposits paid and the
amount of capital commitments were free from any
material misstatement.

EEZBEER (&)
EERNBEBEHEE ST AAASTER U
R EMMEEERBEENTEBEEE:

1. BREXHEFABEZE-_ZZTNF=A
—t+—BZEEBEXRNL67,105000
BITIRE I BHREM I 2IRBEEWE
BERSEBEAMEEERNRESTE AN
M- ZESHEELEAREE BRI
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RESPONSE TO AUDITORS’ OPINION (Continued)

2a.

With regard to the validity of approximately
HK$289,314,000 of sales to customers outside Hong
Kong for the year ended 31st March, 2004, the amount
of the sales were supported by verifiable evidence,
including (1) contracts; (2) invoices; (3) PRC Custom
Export Merchandise Declaration Forms or duly
acknowledged delivery notes; (4) written and oral
confirmations from the customers directly to the auditors
and external international accounting firm; (5) shipment
confirmations from the applicable freight forwarding
company directly to the external international accounting
firm; (6) customer interviews and site visits by the
external international accounting firm; and (7)
confirmation with the details of the transactions from
the customers directly to the external international
accounting firm. In addition, all relevant accounts
receivable had been settled by 31st March, 2004. The
external international accounting firm took considerable
time in collecting, reviewing and analysing such evidence.
Having reviewed the findings in the external international
accounting firm's report and the Hong Kong and PRC
legal opinions, the audit committee concluded that there
was no evidence of irregularity, impropriety or illegality
in connection with the sales transactions, and the
directors are of the view that sales transactions of the

Group were free from any material misstatement.
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RESPONSE TO AUDITORS’ OPINION (Continued)

2b.

With regard to the validity of the purchase transactions
with a major supplier in the PRC, the transactions were
supported by verifiable evidence, including (1) purchase
orders; (2) delivery notes from the suppliers; (3)
confirmations from suppliers directly to the auditors;
and (4) confirmation with the details of the transactions
from the suppliers directly to the external international
accounting firm. Having reviewed the findings in the
external international accounting firm's report, the audit
committee concluded that there was no impropriety,
irregularity or illegality relating to the purchase
transactions, and the directors are of the view that the
purchase transactions of the Group were free from any
material misstatement.

Given the fact that no illegality, irregularly or impropriety has

been found by the audit committee on the part of the Group

in its dealings with its customers
and suppliers in light of results
of such external international
accounting firm's extensive
investigation and findings, and
the Hong Kong and PRC legal
opinions, and the auditors’ audit
work with the Group in previous
years without raising any
questions on the identical
settlement practice of the sales
transactions of the Group (which
had been in place and not

changed since the listing of the
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Company in 2002), the directors regret that the auditors are

not satisfied and are of the opinion that they have not received

all the information and explanations necessary. Notwithstanding

the above, further delay of result announcement may affect

shareholders’ interest and therefore the Company concurs the

issuance of the audit report. However, the Company reserves

all its rights over and in connection with such disagreement

with the opinion of the auditors.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

There were neither significant investment held by the Group
nor material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies for the years ended 31st March, 2004
and 2003 except as disclosed in note 11 to the financial
statements.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31st March, 2004 the Group pledged a bank deposit of
approximately HK$304,000 to secure a rental deposit banking
guarantee. As at 31st March, 2003 the time deposits of
approximately HK$2,319,000 was pledged together with a joint
and several guarantees given by Mr. Chu Siu Chun, Chu Chien
Tung and Chu Chick Kei to secure general banking facilities
amounting to approximately HK$5,301,000 granted to the
Group. The general banking facilities of HK$5,000,000 had
been terminated and the joint and several guarantees given by
Mr. Chu Siu Chun, Chu Chien Tung and Chu Chick Kei had
been released on 29th April, 2003.

FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF
FUNDING

Details of the Group’s future
plans for material investments
or capital expenditures and their
expected source of funding
have been stated in the
Company’'s prospectus dated
19th July, 2002 under the
sections headed “Business
Objectives and Implementation
Plans” and "Use of Proceeds” respectively. Progress of these
has been dealt within sections headed “Business Objectives
Review". Apart from those disclosed, should there be any other
related plan for material investments or capital expenditure,
the Group will consider any possible funding options.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Board believes that the exchange rate risks of the Group
is minimal because the Group conducts its business transactions
principally in Renminbi in the PRC, which was relatively stable
during the financial year under review. However, devaluation
of the Renminbi against the Hong Kong dollar would adversely
affect the Group’s performance when measured in Hong Kong
dollar.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DM

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group and the Company had no contingent liabilities as at
both 31st March, 2004 and 2003.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segmental information of the Group is set out in note 4 to the
financial statements. There was a 16.04% increase of turnover
to that of previous year, mainly contributed by house brand
light source products.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31st March, 2004, the Group had about 211 full time
employees. The Group’s employees were remunerated
according to the nature of their duty and market trend, with
discretionary bonus and benefit of retirement scheme, share
options and necessary training. Total staff costs for the year
amounted to approximately HK$8.47 million (2003: HK$6.45
million).

The share option schemes continue to play an important role
in the motivation and retention of quality employees.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

The Group achieved a satisfactory turnover of approximately
HK$299.90 million, representing a growth of 16.04% over last
year. The success was mainly attributable to (1) the Group's
marketing initiatives and active participation in international
lighting exhibitions that has greatly enhanced recognition of
the “Tungda” brand; (2) its effort to recruit overseas distributors;
and (3) its dedication to strive for high quality products. For
the year ended 31st March, 2004, sales of house brand light
source products was HK$145.33 million, accounting for 48.45%
of total turnover.

Sales & Marketing

For the year ended 31st March, 2004 and following, the Group
participated in the following major international lighting
exhibitions:
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Light Fair 2004
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Sales & Marketing (Continued)

Through these exhibitions, the Group promotes “Tungda” brand
and products to potential customers from all over the world
including Australia, Japan, South Korea, Brazil, United Kingdom,
Germany and other European countries. Some of these potential
new customers from these countries subsequently ordered
sample products from the Group. In addition, the Group also
received significant press coverage and was featured in trade
journals and various international lighting magazines. Specifically,
Tungda's induction lamps and its potential new product
microwave sulphur lamps were featured in the international
lighting magazine “Switch”, and “Tungda” was featured as one
of the Hong Kong brands in the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council's "Hong Kong Enterprise”.

The Group also conducted various marketing initiatives including
(1) running a two-month publicity drive on the Mass Transit
Railway, advertising both inside and outside the carriages; (2)
taking the front page of a popular newspaper Sing Tao Daily
(25 B ) for a full-color advertisement to celebrate being
appointed as GE Lighting's exclusive distributor for its lighting
fixtures in Hong Kong and Macau; and (3) advertising Tungda
products in local and international lighting and home furnishing

magazines.

Strategic Development

Being one of the distributors of GE Lighting for its light source
products for over seven years, the Group was appointed as
the exclusive distributor of GE Lighting for its lighting fixtures
in Hong Kong and Macau in January 2004. The appointment
enables the Group to expand its product lines to include lighting
fixtures.

To facilitate its overseas expansion, the Group has been actively
seeking for capable distributors around the world, and has
successfully signed up new distributors in the US and Canada.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Research & Development

Committed to providing high quality energy-saving light source
products, the Group has dedicated resources to enhance the
offerings of its currently available induction lamps, and to
develop two new products: automobile HID xenon lamps and
microwave sulphur lamps.

. Enhancement of induction lamp offerings

During the year ended 31st March, 2004, the Group
had completed the development of the low-wattage and
high-wattage induction lamps, that target for residential
use and commercial/industrial uses respectively. The
successful development of the low-wattage and high-
wattage induction lamps not only provides the Group
with a complete series of induction lamps, but also
enhances market recognition and competitiveness of
the Group's products in the induction lamp market.

. Development of automobile HID xenon lamps
Automobile HID xenon lamp is a popular type of car
headlamps in developed countries including European
Union and Japan. Generally, it consumes only one-third
of energy for the same brightness as the traditional
filament headlamps. The Transport Department of the
HKSAR passed a new regulation permitting the use of
HID xenon lamps in January, 2004. The Group is at the
final stage of developing the automobile HID xenon
lamps and believes its completion would enable the
Group to capture benefits of this new market segment.

. Development of microwave sulphur lamps

Microwave sulphur lamp represents a new type of
innovative, environmental friendly energy-saving light
source products. Generally, its lumens efficacy is 10
folds of that of traditional HID lamps. Given its mercury-
free nature and its spectrum energy distribution
resembled that of solar rays, microwave sulphur lamps
can be used in agricultural and environmental
researches. The Group is at the final stage of developing
the microwave sulphur lamps. With the increasing
awareness in environmental protection globally, the
Group believes development of this new product
provides the Group with good market potentials in
lighting.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Construction of New Plant

Pursuant to the Group's strategy to strengthen its production
capability, the Group established a new plant in the PRC. The
new plant aims strategically to increase the designed monthly
production capacity of the Group’s existing induction lamp
production line, and to facilitate its future expansion for
production lines of other new products. The Group believes
that this new plant will take advantage of the lower production
costs in the PRC. Equipped with advanced equipment, excellent
technologies and technical personnel, the Group expects to
supply innovative, high quality energy-saving light source
products to local and overseas markets.

Located in Xianyou County, Fujian province, the PRC, the
leasehold land occupies an area of approximately 58,823 square
meters. The Group has completed the construction of Phase
One facility for the induction lamp production line in March
2004 and commenced production in May 2004. The designed
monthly production capacity of the induction lamp production
line will be increased from 12,000 units to 140,000 units on

the basis of one shift per day.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds raised from the listing of the Group on the
GEM on 26th July, 2002 and private placing on 18th
September, 2003 were approximately HK$44.3 million and
49.5 million respectively, based on the actual placing price of
HK$0.25 and HK$0.334 per share respectively.

On 26th February, 2004, the Company issued and allotted
shares to certain employees upon the exercise of share option,
and raised the net proceeds approximately HK$14.9 million

raised from this exercise.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING (Continued)
During the period from 26th July, 2002 to 31st March, 2004,
the Group had incurred the following amount to achieve the

business objectives as set out in the Prospectus:

Development and enhancement of
new light source technologies
products and strengthening of
research and development
collaboration with Fudan University

Expansion of manufacturing
capacity and capability (machinery
and equipment)

Establishment and expansion of sales
and distribution network in the PRC
and the oversea market

Enhancement of brand recognition

and public awareness
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Total
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use of proceeds

stated in
the Prospectus

planned use of up to 31st
proceeds as March, 2004  Actual amount
set out in the BRERME used up to 31st
Prospectus HE-ZTENF March, 2004
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING (Continued)

The unused proceeds have been deposited at banks to prepare
for future use set out in the business development plan in the
Prospectus.

Note 1:  Owing to the re-organisation of Fudan University, the
incorporation of the joint venture had been delayed.

Note 2:  The excess of use of proceeds was attributed by the
additional acquisition of plant and machinery and was
financed by net proceeds raised from the private placement
on 18th September, 2003 and internal funding.

Note 3: It was due to the deferral of executing the plan for
enhancement of brand recognition and public awareness.

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At the time of the listing of the Company, the Group intended
to expand its manufacturing capacity by setting up additional
production lines in Shenzhen. However, to cope with new
business development and demand after listing, the Group
decided to set up a new plant in Fujian, the PRC. For the year
under review, the Company has entered into three major
contracts for the purchases of machineries of adjusted total
contracts amount HK$80,990,000. Deposits HK$67,105,000
were paid and included in the balance sheet as at 31st March,

2004 in respect of the three contracts.

The machineries to be acquired by the Group will enable the
Group to (1) expand the production capacity of its existing
induction lamp production line; (2) expand its product line to
include microwave sulphur lamps (a new and innovative type
of mercury-free environmental friendly and energy-saving light
source products); and (3) expand its product line to include
automobile high intensity discharge (“HID") xenon lamps (a
popular type of car headlamps in developed countries including
European Union and Japan). The machineries are relevant to
the section "Expansion of manufacturing capacity and capability”
under the heading “BUSINESS OBIJECTIVES AND
IMPLEMENTATION PLANS" of the Company's Prospectus dated
19th July, 2002.
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ACQUISITION FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIMENT
(Continued)

On the advice of the Company's PRC legal advisers, these
three contracts were likely unenforceable under PRC laws as
they should have been executed by a PRC entity rather than
the Company, and they were cancelled and new contracts of
same respective amounts were made by Tungda Lighting
(Fujian) Co., Ltd. (a wholly foreign-invested PRC enterprise
with limited liability of the Group in the PRC) with the same
counterparties on 17th July, 2004. Previous payments made
under the cancelled contracts were acknowledged to have been

paid under the new contracts made on 17th July, 2004.

Tungda Lighting (Fujian) Co., Ltd. further entered into a contract
in July 2004 of amount approximately HK$21,493,000 and
has paid HK$7,965,000 as deposit in August 2004 for the
contract for the purchases of machineries which are
complementary to the previous contract for the automobile
HID xenon lamps production line.

In addition to the aforesaid contracts, the Group has spent an
additional amount of approximately HK$22,162,488 for the
purchases of production machinery and equipment for
production line of induction lamps since the date of the listing
to 31st March, 2004. As such, the Group has spent an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$97,232,000 and has outstanding
commitment of approximately HK$27,413,000 on purchasing
the production machinery and equipment since the date of
listing.

A budget of HK$18 million from the listing proceeds was
allocated for purchasing production machinery and ancillary
facilities. The Group therefore has incurred additional expenses
in the amount of HK$106,645,000 for such purposes, which
were financed by internal resources including i) proceeds of
approximately HK$49,500,000 from a private placing on 18th
September, 2003; ii) proceeds of approximately
HK$14,900,000 from the exercise of share options on 26th
February, 2004; and iii) income from operations.
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MELA+EHMTZIMEHNZENFKIE.

RARBHE (BR)ERANR_ZEZTNFLA#E
—HRIM e F421,493,0008 T KEBHEE
B WERZZEZENFN\ALZR7,965,000% T
R AN ZHRERBRINAEASBRER
BB zEREES -

BREMRAEHIIN ANEBEF ETMAPE_STHF
—A=+T—HHM ZISEZH[T 422,162,488
BTRBERREREABEEREEKSE
k@ - Bt AEEE LM ABMKBEER
BREREE EZHL97,232,0008 T kA H K
BB A IE KRR 27,413,000 JT

ETATS 338 - 18,000,0007% JT & o B A 1B
BrEERRRWBRE - AEEBEmMB L EE
106,645,000 LRI T B ZEXHUALE
BEM EREE)R -_ZEE=FAA+ /B
ABCE BT 1S 3R IB 4949,500,0008 7 iR =2 F
WE—_AZ+ABAOEBEREMBRIELY
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREABE DN

ACQUISITION FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIMENT
(Continued)

The Group has also spent approximately HK$21,550,000 for
its leasehold land and buildings for its production plant in
Fujian since the date of listing to 31st March, 2004, which has
commenced production in May 2003. The amount was financed
by internal funding of the Group.

PROSPECTS
The Board remains positive about its business outlook. Sales
of the Group's products are expected to continue growing in

the years ahead with the introduction of more new products.

Given the increasing awareness in environmental protection in
the lighting industry, the Group is confident that customers
will continue to replace the traditional light source products
with the Group's products owing to longer life hours and higher

energy efficiency.

The Group will use its best endeavor to maximize return to its
shareholders in the years ahead.

The Group had made an application to the Stock Exchange on
17th October, 2003 for the listing of the Company's shares by
way of introduction on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and voluntarily withdrawing its listing on the GEM Board
conditional upon, amongst other things, the successful outcome
of the application for the proposed listing of the Company’s
shares on the Main Board. The application has been processed
by the Stock Exchange and automatically expired upon expiration
of the six-months’ processing period. The Group had
subsequently suspended the application for the listing of the
Company's shares on the Main Board. The Group will continue
to pursue and focus on its core business of being a provider
of good quality light source products.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Business Objectives Review
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL
BUSINESS PROGRESS

An analysis comparing the business objectives as stated in the
Prospectus dated 19th July, 2002 with the Group's actual
business progress up to 31st March, 2004.

26th July, 2002 (date of listing) to 30th September, 2002
—EFE_FLAFtANA(LTHE) E-FFE_FAA=1H

Sales and marketing

HERMISER

Expected Business Progress

FHXBER

Establish representative offices in
Shanghai, Tianjin, Beijing, Chonggin
and Guangzhou in the PRC

RePEEE X2 AR BEENE
MBI EWFRE

Appoint PRC distribution agents
ZREZEFESHKRE

Seek suitable overseas distribution
agents

MERENEIND HAE

Visit and conduct market research in
Paris, Singapore, Tokyo and Kuala
Lumpur for preparation of setting up
representative offices
FER MK RRARETEES
o WHETTHAS EMKRME
B&

Participate in international and
domestic lighting exhibitions
SEBEREERAMRARES

EBEEREREXBERLIE

AR —_ZFTE_FtRAThBZBERERMH
XBEREAERBEE _TENF=A=1+—
AZEREBERILBRO N

Actual Business Progress

ERXBER

Established representative offices in
Shanghai. We have not found
appropriate offices in Tianjin, Beijing,
Chongqing and Guangzhou
ERLEBRIRKRMER BHRK
RREUIR EERBENEHSTHE
BEMERINER

Appointed a PRC distribution agent
EZR-—2HESHAE

Continue to seek suitable overseas
distribution agents

BEMESENESIINTHRE

Visited Singapore and Kuala Lumpur
for seeking suitable partners. We will
start to visit and conduct market
research in Taipei and Seoul next
year

EEFFMEREER - WEEE
R BRAFHRIIG AR
=W WETTISRE

Promoted the products in domestic
lighting exhibitions. International
lighting exhibitions was launched in
alterative year
EEAMRARESHHEED:
BERRARESRFRT

R K H & B B & 2 R A R 24 7
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Business Objectives Review
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL

BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

Sales and Marketing (Continued)
HERMHHE (&)

Expansion of manufacturing capacity
and capability
RAESEREEN

Research and development

fif 2

Expected Business Progress

FHXKER

Consistently promote the Group's
products via advertising in
professional magazines, sponsoring
activities and product trial to end
users
THERBEEXRRRTEES B
BES kG THREBPEMAR
K- UREAEEE M

Finalise the development plan on
setting up new production lines in
Shenzhen
EERRINE R EESN R

£

Enter into rental agreement of the
plant area

A V= RVRERD)

Order the required equipment from
vendors

) fH FE P AT BB P 6 AR 1B

Continue with the development of
low-wattage induction lamps for
residential use; high-wattage
induction lamps for industrial and
outdoor use; ceramic metal halide
lamps and xenon lamp for
automobile
BERTEHOIZABRRLERE X
B-IERPIIAGRERENE.
BEERERAEATE

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EBERREREXRERLE (&)

Actual Business Progress

EREXKER

Advertising and promotion activities
and product trial to end users
EEETHERESEERAKE
RPKEERABE

The Group had rented additional
premises which is used as additional
office and production factory in
Shenzhen
AEBERRISTHEHRYE 1E
BHERAEREERE

As above

A £ SRt

Preparing to order the equipments
in the second half year

EERNTHFEITBARRE

All development have been carried
out as planned
2R B TR B AT



Business Objectives Review
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL EREEHEREKERLER (&)

BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

st October, 2002 to 31st March, 2003
—EE_F+ A HE_FEFE=F=A=+—H

Expected Business Progress

RHRBER
Sales and marketing Continue to appoint PRC distribution
HE RTIHHE agents

BEZRZZTEDHRE

Appoint suitable overseas
distribution agents

ZEAENBIDHAE

Establish representative offices in
Paris, Singapore, Tokyo and Kuala
Lumpur

FREZR - FT AN RO I R K S
RIKRKPER

Visit and conduct market research in
Taipei and Seoul for preparation of
setting up representative offices

FF et RN WETTISHSE
NERRKRPER

Participate in international and
domestic lighting exhibitions
SHEBEREARARES

Actual Business Progress

ERXBER

Continue to seek suitable PRC &
overseas distribution agents
BEEMEEENTRERBINDHR
b2

Continue to seek suitable overseas
distribution agents

HEMESENESIINTHRE

Continue to seek appropriate offices
in Paris, Singapore, Tokyo and Kuala
Lumpur

FREEZR - F AN RO B R K S
BEMEEEMWARIMEE

We will start to visit and conduct
market research in Taipei and Seoul
next year. We have visited Singapore
and Kuala Lumpur for seeking
suitable partners and promote the
Group's products

R F MR B A4 ROEW - I
ETTISREE - CRHA MK RF
X -MesENBHREESEE
AEBE®

Promoted products in domestic
lighting exhibitions. International
lighting exhibitions was launched in
alternate year
EERRAREEHHEEM
HRRARESRFET

R K H & B B & 2 R A R 24 7
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Business Objectives Review
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL

BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

Sales and Marketing (Continued)
HERTISHRE (&)

Expansion of manufacturing capacity
and capability
RAEEREEDN

Expected Business Progress

FHXKER

Consistently promote the Group's
products via advertising in
professional magazines, sponsoring
activities and product trial to end
users
THERBEEXRRRTEES B
BEBkETREAFPERAR
£URERAEEEM

Support the development of
education in light source related
disciplines and for public awareness
on energy-saving light products
XRHEBRARRBOHE RS A
RE AL IR E m eV BT

Commence rental of the new plant
area

GECREE R

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EBERREREXRERLE (&)

Actual Business Progress

EREXKER

Advertising and promotion activities
and product trial to end users
EERDTNNEREEEFERAKK
APRKEEmABE

Supported education in light source
for publishing a professional
magazine in light source

HiR BB NRE RO BEZE A
XRHEBRRHE

The Group had set up a PRC
subsidiary in Fujian Province which
will engage in the business of
manufacturing and trading of lighting
products in the PRC in next financial
year. The Group had started the
plant construction in January 2003
and had been completed plant
construction at the end of March
2003. The directors considered that
the set up of this Fujian subsidiary is
beneficial to the Company as a
whole as the Group can cope with
future expansion and enjoy tax
savings incentive
AEBERBREERIZIPENER
Al Z M B AR T — 1 BB
EETEEEFRAERBERES
¥ AEER-_TETE=F—HE
FEHEBFE TR _TT=F=H
ExXKELRTIR-FFRE KB
BIMBARAEABREBELTR
EEBBREZER WHARF
Bem=sA M



Business Objectives Review
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL

BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

Expansion of manufacturing capacity
and capability (Continued)
RATEEREEN (&)

Research and development

it 2

Expected Business Progress

FHXKER

Install all required equipment and
auxiliary facilities

2 H — Y] P R AR NP B R

Employ additional labour force

BT

Commence production with new
facilities

P20 AR R b A

Continue with the development of
low-wattage induction lamps for
residential use, high-wattage
induction lamps for industrial and
outdoor use, ceramic metal halide
lamps, xenon lamp for automobile

and microwave sulphur lamps
BERAEHOIEZABLERE

EBERREREXRERLE (&)

Actual Business Progress

EREXKER

Preparing to install new equipments
in Fujian subsidiary

EHEREMB LR LENRE

s

Preparing to employ labour in Fujian
subsidiary
EBRBENBARESZET

Expected to commence production
in May 2003
R —_ZEZE=FhARE

All development have been carried
out as planned
2R B TR A 1T

B-IXRPHRAEREGHEE.
P& S NE TERDUE R MURR

&

R K & ® B 8 2 B &5 R 2o 7
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Business Objectives Review
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL EKBEZCHEREKERLE (&)

BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

Ist April, 2003 to 30th September, 2003
—EE-FWHA—HE=ELE=FAA=+H

Expected Business Progress

RHXBER
Sales and marketing Establishment and expansion of
HE RTISHE sales and distribution network in the

PRC and the overseas markets
BYRBEERPBREEIIMIGHEE
& ek EE

Enhancement of brand recognition

and to promote its public awareness

RARBBEREAZAEE

Launching of new products Launching low-wattage induction

HE BT E lamps for residential use, high-
wattage induction lamps for
industrial and outdoor use, and
ceramic metal halide lamps
HEHETHELEGELE T%
EEIAEREGEELERBE S
&

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Actual Business Progress

EREXKER

The Group has appointed a
distribution agent in the USA and
continued to seek agents in PRC.
Also the Group has established a
representative office in Shanghai
and decided to postpone the
establishment of other overseas
office.
AEBDOEEHZEHERE I
BEETFEDERE -REEITTE
REBRTREPEE WAEE
R ER I EM SN ER -

The Group spent advertising and
business promotion expenses of
approximately HK$3.8 million to
promote its product and participated
in domestic and international
lighting exhibitions.
AEEBCHRABESREBHERMX
#3,800,0007% T A HE B E E & - I
SERMEBERERARES -

The products are undergoing the
development stage. Delay was due
to extra time involved in research
and development.
MEmERNFERER -BRHAR
RBAETIIEZT2HEINSE HHR



Business Objectives Review

X% B & R E

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL XEBEEHEREKERLER (&)
BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

Expected Business Progress Actual Business Progress
RHRBER EREBER
Research and development Development and enhancement of The Group is working closely with
ot 2 new light source technologies Fudan University in development of
products new products as stated planned in
7 B & HR & 8 L R B EE the Prospectus.

AEEBRLNRRERMTE &
EERBETAE REHER-

Strengthening of research and The setting up of a joint venture
development collaboration with company in PRC by the Group and
Fudan University Fudan University was delayed due to
hnog B1E B K 2 &) i 3 173 1F re-organisation of Fudan University.

The Group spent research and
development expenses of
approximately HK$8.2 million on
new products including low-wattage
induction lamps, ceramic metal
halide lamps and xenon lamps for
automobile.
HREBEXRSETER HAEE
HEEHRRESEASECE—SHAM
ER-AEEERTER (BEER
BEGEAE BEERBERAEMA
K& ) B A B 3% 7 52 49.8,200,00078
To

R K & ® B 8 2 B &5 R 2o 7
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Business Objectives Review
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL EREEHEREKERLER (&)

BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

st October, 2003 to 31st March, 2004
—EEFF A HE-_FENF=ZA=+—H

Expected Business Progress

AHMEKER
Sales and marketing Launching of new products of low-
HE RTISHE wattage and high-wattage induction

lamps, xenon lamps for automobile
and microwave sulphur lamps
HEERES RERELE TE
FA 8 R D80R: B 1B 55 37 E am

Continue to appoint PRC distribution
agents

BEZRZZTEDHRE

Continue to appoint suitable
overseas distribution agents

HEZEAENESIINDHRE

Participate in international and
domestic lighting exhibitions
SHEBEREEARARES

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Actual Business Progress

EREXKER

Development and testing of low-
wattage and high-wattage induction
lamps are finished. These products
are ready for market launching.
Other products are currently in the
final process of development and
testing. Delay was due to the extra
time involved in the development
stage.

B E RISER RS R E®
BHBEZ TIE NERATBERETT -
HoAth E IR A B 1% A 3 ROBI L
B-ARAERREZRINGE S
HIRIERR o

The Group continued to seek
suitable distribution agent in the
PRC.
rEBESDESENPEHSHN
8o

The Group appointed new
distribution agent in Canada, and
will continue to seek suitable
distribution agent in other overseas
markets.
REERMEREZEH D HALE
THREMBEINTSYEAEND
THIR -

The Group participated in the
International Lighting Exhibition held
in Hong Kong in October 2003. The
Group also participated in
international lighting exhibitions held
in Las Vegas and Frankfurt in April
2004.
AEBR_ZZ=F+ALHEESR
BROZBERARES TR
ST I0F 0 B 2 8 A R HT 4 0T &
ERRRBETZERRARES -



Business Objectives Review
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL
BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

Research and development

it 2

Expected Business Progress

FHMXBER

Consistently promote the Group's
products via advertising in
professional magazines, sponsoring
activities and product trial to end
users
THEREEXRRTEES
BE B Mia %Eﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
EOUEHAERE R

Coordinate with professional
associations and institutes in the
light source professional for
organizing market seminars and
forums
BREXEBREES E B
mEMaERERE

Finalise the development of xenon

lamps of automobile
EEMRBERERATE

Finalise the development of
microwave sulphur lamps

EEREBORRE

REEERERXFERKE (&)

Actual Business Progress

ERXBER

The Group promoted products
through advertisement in trade
journals and international lighting
magazines and will continue to seek
suitable platforms to promote the
Group's products.

REBNE 5 & B R A
HEESHEER YEEEDE
BENFE AEHAEEEMR-

The Group continued to seek
suitable market seminars and forums
to participate.

rEEEEMERZ HEH TS
M REKXE-

The Group is at the final
development for the product.
RAEEBARAEZER 2 &ER
Eo

As above

4 £ SRt
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. CHU Chien Tung, aged 51, is the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company. He is a member of Political
Consultative Conference of Henan Province, Vice-Chairman of
Putian Overseas Chinese Association. He was awarded “The
Outstanding Entrepreneur” in Fujian Xianyou County. He was
appointed as a director of the Company on 19th December,
2001. He is currently a part-time professor of the Faculty of
Light Sources and Illluminating Engineering in Fudan University.
Since the establishment of Tungda Industrial Limited in 1984,
Mr. Chu has participated in manufacturing, trading and sales of
lighting sources products. Mr. Chu is the founder of Tungda
Industrial Limited in 1984,

Mr. CHU Chick Kei, aged 46, is the vice chairman and deputy
chief executive officer of the Company. He was appointed as a
director of the Company on 19th December, 2001. He joined
Tungda Industrial Limited in August 1986 and has been engaged
in manufacturing, trading, sales, management and
administration. He is the brother of Mr. Chu Chien Tung.

Mr. CHU Sen Hei, aged 24, is a director and the son of Mr.
Chu Chien Tung. He was appointed as a director of the
Company on 10th April, 2002. He joined Tungda Industrial
Limited in April 2000 and is responsible for technical
development of lighting sources, sales for overseas market

and administration.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. CHOW Sau Fong, Fiona, aged 32, had been an
independent non-executive director of the Company. She was
appointed as a director of the Company on 30th September,
2003. She has more than six years marketing and public
relations experience in the Greater China region where she
served at multinational corporations and non-profit organization.
Since 2000, she has worked as a management consultant,
and has responsibility for consultancy services in market
expansion, business development and investment projects,
specializing in financial services and media industries in both
Asian and United States markets. Ms. Chow graduated with a
Bachelor degree in Business Administration (Honors) from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds a Master degree
in Business Administration in Finance and Entrepreneurial
Management from the Wharton Business School of University
of Pennsylvania.

Non-executive Director

Dr. FUNG Shiu Lun, Anthony, aged 43, is an non-executive
director of the Company. He was appointed as a director of
the Company on 1st June, 2004. Dr. Fung graduated from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology with dual Bachelor of
Science degrees in Chemical Engineering and Chemistry, and
a Master degree in Chemical Engineering Practice. He also
holds a Master degree in Business Administration from The
Wharton Business School of University of Pennsylvania and a
Doctoral in Philosophy degree in Chemical Engineering from
the University of Delaware of the United Sates (“US").

Dr. Fung is currently the General Manager of a private
investment firm focusing on healthcare industry in the People’s
Republic of China. Previously, Dr. Fung has extensive
management consultancy experience in financial services,
manufacturing, and energy sectors in Asia and US. He is the
holder of 15 US patents on the development of new catalytic

materials and their related petrochemical and refining processes.

Ex (#)
HBiTESE (8)

BEF L 3250 ARRIABILIERTES 1
—EE-FNA-HHAERZTALARRES K
EARERBENTULTSHEERABER:
DEZHEBRCERILFMEIF- 8T
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BRERNEBEE ZEBRE BRAEMNRE
BHmss @RS REBITE-BLEIREER
NABEX FHAKEIBEREEL 2L TR
& 4 A B M K B IK 18 7 22 Bt (Wharton Business
Schoo VS B R (ER I HEEBE T80

FHBTES

BRBE L 435 A RRERTES RN
WEAA—RAEZARAARESR - FELTEX
RMEE TSR AEESIEETIREMLEIEE
TEBM URMEETRETSZM-HE KREE
£ 5B 22 M K 22K 8 7 2 fT (Wharton Business
Schoo)ER{§ TR B BIE L& WHEEBIZENE
MABRGLETREIFE IS

BBLERS - RMARERRZBEE  ZAA
HOBREPEARLANMBE 2 BHERBITE -EM
AZRBIZA BESMEEBEZ 28RS &
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

E=EkeREEEER

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Lei Bo, aged 41, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. He was appointed as a director of
the Company on 30th September, 2003. Mr. Zhu graduated
from Shanghai Institute of Building Materials, Renmin University
of China and Tongji University in the People’'s Republic of
China (“"PRC"). He is also a deputy director of Glass
Sub-committee of The Chinese Ceramic Society and fellow of
Coating Sub-committee of China Architectural and Industrial
Glass Association. Mr. Zhu is currently the General Manager of
China Luoyang Float Glass Group Company Limited, a company
established in the PRC and has extensive experience in
production, coordination and technology management.

Mr. HONG Yong Hwan, aged 46, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He was appointed as
a director of the Company on 18th September, 2003. Mr. Hong
graduated from National Taiwan Normal University and Korea
University. He was presently an executive director of a retailing

and trading firm in the People’s Republic of China.

Ms. WU King Yin, aged 30, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. She was appointed as a director of
the Company on 1st June, 2004. Ms. Wu graduated from
University of Wollongong with a Bachelor degree of Commerce
in Accounting and holds a Master degree of Business
Administration from University of Deakin. She is a Certified
Practicing Accountant of the CPA Australia and an associated
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Ms. Wu is currently an independent consultant specializing in
business strategy and financial management and has extensive

experience in finance, accounting and auditing.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. MOK Lam Fong, aged 33, is the sales manager of the
Company. She is responsible for the overall sales matter of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group in January 1999, she
was a sales manager of K.B. Industrial (HK) Limited, a trading

company based in Hong Kong.

Mr. WANG Zhimin, aged 40, is the senior engineer of the
Company. He graduated from Jiangxi University in 1989 with a
bachelor's degree in applied electronics. Prior to the joining
the Group in January 1999, he was a chief technical officer of
Shenzhen Guilin Industry Co., Ltd, a lighting manufacturer based
in Shenzhen, the PRC.

Mr. ZHU Qing Chun, aged 36, is the deputy general manager
of Light Power. He graduated from Xiamen University in 1990
with a bachelor's degree in Economics. Prior to joining the
Group in June 2000, he was a deputy general manager of
Shanghai Chientung Industrial Limited, a trading company based
in Shanghai, the PRC.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEE Wing Lun, aged 44, graduated from the Australian
National University with a Bachelor degree in Commerce and
holds a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Administration from
the Polytechnic University of Hong Kong. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
CPA Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
He joins the Group in October 2003 and is responsible for the
financial and accounting management and secretarial affairs of
the Group. He has over 8 years of working experience in
auditing, accounting and finance matters including over 6 years
in several audit firms and has been the financial controller of a

trading group.

EREEE
EMFaL 335 AARHELE B AEAKHE
MEBERBHEEHE - BN —NANF-ANALXSE

E Rl AEEE 572 FKB. Industrial (HK) Limited

FTEHRE 40 ARA SR TR BN —N
JNFEERNTIARE BARRETREELE
- BR—NANNFE-RMAREER "/F
FINRARERA R EAREZER QA &AM

M-

KREBBRLE 365 R HEIBEE - BN —N
NEFEEFIRBEX NGKRESRELE(-
BER_ZFZTTFNAMARKER RPELE
HEH AR LERREZFARAFAARLE-

EERETMRAARE

=K f & 4 - 4475% - 2 % 7 Australian National
University - BEES T2 RFHFEBEIKRE
ARAITHERREX R - FTREREBGHAA
e BNgHMAe BEARNELAERER
FOWERITHRABRAEEE BR_ET=F

TAMAXEE AERE MR ETERE
WMEFE - RINZE @5t MBI EEE R

BEF TR SN BRXERHBMERCF 5
ERN—RESEEEEVHEE-

R K o4 & B 8 # B 8 R & 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 iR




Report of the Directors
i =

EEERS

The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31st March, 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2004
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 55

of the annual report.

An interim dividend of HK$0.0020 per share amounting to
approximately HK$2,131,000 was declared and paid to the
shareholders of the Company during the year. The directors
propose for the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.0034 per
share amounting to approximately HK$3,759,000 being made
payable to the shareholders of the Company.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results of the Group for each of the four
years ended 31st March, 2004 is set out on page 4 of the

annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the Group's property,
plant and equipment are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

On 18th September, 2003, the Company issued and allotted
177,600,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each at the price of
HK$0.334 per share to provide the additional capital to finance

the Group's business expansion.

On 26th February, 2004, the Company issued and allotted
10,549,440 shares and 29,450,560 shares of HK$0.01 each
at HK$0.452 and HK$0.345 per share respectively upon the
exercise of share options granted to certain employees.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.

Further details in relation to the authorised and issued share
capital of the Company are set out in note 18 to the financial

statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Chien Tung
(Chairman)

Mr. Chu Chick Kei

Mr. Chu Sen Hei

Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona (re-designated as
executive director

on 30th September, 2003)
Non-executive directors:
Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony  (appointed on Tst June, 2004)
Ms. Chang Wai Ling, Lily (resigned on 1st June, 2004)
(appointed on 15th April, 2003

and resigned on
16th October, 2003)

Mr. Lee Deng Charng

fig 2

RZZEZ=FALA+N\B AQAREBEREMD
03348 T 2 BHR 1T LA % 177,600,000k &
BREECOIBTZHBRG UARNSEEKERE
RMHBEHINER-

RZBEZENMF A=+ A AQaREBEFET
EECZHEREETER 2 AEERRHK0.452
B IT 12 0.345% T 817 I B 35 10,549,440 &
29,450,560 X EEHO0.01E L 2 & 1n °
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(Continued)
Independent non-executive directors:

Ms. Wu King Yin (appointed on Tst June, 2004)

Mr. Hong Yong Hwan (appointed on

18th September, 2003)
(appointed on

30th September, 2003)
(resigned on

18th September, 2003)

(re-designated as

Mr. Zhu Lei Bo

Dr. Liu Juh, James

Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona
executive director
on 30th September, 2003)

In accordance with the Articles 86 and 87 of the Company's
Articles of Association, all directors, expect Mr. Chu Chien Tung,
Mr. Chu Chick Kei and Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona, shall retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei, Chu Sen Hei
and Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona has entered into a service
contract with the Company. Particulars of these contracts, except
as indicated, are in all material respects identical and are set
out below:

1. each service contract of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu
Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei is of two years duration
commenced on 1st August, 2002 until terminated by either
party giving to the other not less than three months’ prior
written notice or payment of salary in lieu thereof, such
notice to expire upon the initial term of two years, while
the service contract of Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona is of
two years duration commenced on 29th September, 2003,
on part time basis, until terminated by either party giving
to the other not less than three months’ prior written
notice or payment of salary in lieu thereof, such notice to

expire upon the initial term of two years;
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

(Continued)

2. the monthly salary for each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung,
Chu Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei for the year from 1st
April, 2002 to 31st March, 2004 shall be HK$100,000,
HK$80,000 and HK$50,000 respectively, while the
monthly salary for Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona for the
period from 29th September, 2003 to 31st March, 2004
shall be HK$20,000;

3. each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei, Chu Sen
Hei and Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona is entitled to such
management bonus by reference to the consolidated net
profits of the Group after taxation and extraordinary items
("Net Profits”) as the board of directors may approve
provided that the aggregate amount of management
bonuses payable to all executive directors in respect of
any financial year of the Group shall not exceed 20% of
the Net Profits for the relevant financial year; and

4. each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei, Chu Sen
Hei and Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona shall abstain from
voting and not be counted in the quorum in respect of
any resolution of the board of directors regarding the
amount of annual salary and management bonus payable

to himself/herself.

Each of Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony and Ms. Wu King Yin has
entered into a service contract with the Company. Particulars
of these contracts, except as indicated, are in all material
respects identical and are set out below:

1. each service contract of Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony and
Ms. Wu King Yin is of initial fixed term of one year
commenced on 1Tst June, 2004 which appointment shall
continue after the expiry of the initial fixed term and either
party may terminate the appointment by giving the other
party at least one month’s notice in writing expiring not
earlier than the initial fixed term of one year; and
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

(Continued)

2. the monthly remuneration for each of Dr. Fung Shiu Lun,
Anthony and Ms. Wu King Yin for the year from 1st June,
2004 to 31st May, 2005 shall be HK$8,000.

Save as disclosed above, none of the independent non-
executive directors and the non-executive director has entered

into any service contract with the Group.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors has entered
into any service agreements with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st March, 2004, the interests of the directors and the
chief executives of the Company and their associates in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange") pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) and required to be entered in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Rule 5.46 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (“GEM
Listing Rules”) relating to securities transactions by directors,

were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Long positions

(a) Ordinary shares of HK30.01 each of the Company and

underlying shares

Name of director

EEgA

Mr. Chu Chien Tung
KERSEE

Note:

Capacity
5%

Held by controlled corporation (Note)

mEEEEFE (M)

These shares were held indirectly by Tungda Industrial Limited

(“Tungda Industrial”) through its beneficial interest in the entire
issued share capital of Standard Exceed Limited. Messrs. Chu
Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Siu Chun (father of Messrs.
Chu Chien Tung and Chu Chick Kei) jointly hold the entire issued

share capital of Tungda Industrial.

(b) Share options

Name of director

Exgs

Mr. Chu Chien Tung

Capacity
55

Beneficial owner

N EmEE A
Mr. Chu Chick Kei Beneficial owner
RERTAE BEmEAA
Mr. Chu Sen Hei Beneficial owner
KEBETAE BE=mEAA
Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona Beneficial owner
BHEF 2+ BE=mEAA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors and chief

EERRORMEBRO ZEZERKE (8)

wR

() ARFEREEC.01E T2 & &K EIEH

B’ 17

Number of
issued ordinary
shares held
BT
ZEREAR

560,000,000

i

Percentage of
the issued
share capital

of the Company
EEARBE BT
BRARB D

50.7%

ZERMHRALE (RE) ARAR ([RAT
¥ (5£E) J) #EBE M Standard Exceed Limited %
HEBTRAZEZEMERE KERLE
KERGEERKBELE RRELEERSER
EEZREB) HRABBRALE (5E) 258 %

TTRRA

(b) BER#E
Number of
options held
FsBRERE
1,054,944
1,054,944

10,549,440

3,000,000

BLEXEBEN R-FEF

Number of
underlying
shares
HERGEE
1,054,944
1,054,944

10,549,440

3,000,000

mWE=R=+—8"

executives of the Company and their associates has any interest
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations at 31st
March, 2004.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme adopted on

12th July, 2002, the board of directors may grant share options

to any directors, full time and part time employees of the

Group and the consultant or adviser of the Group. Details of

the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 19 to

the financial statements.

A summary of the movements in the Company’s share options

during the year is as follows:

Directors

£

Mr. Chu Chien Tung
RERAE

Mr. Chu Chick Kei
FEREE

Mr. Chu Sen Hei
REERE

Ms. Chow Sau Fong,
Fiona

FAnnt

Sub-total
B

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Date of grant

Rt B4

21st November, 2003
ZEE-F+-AZ1-H

21st November, 2003
“E3zF+-fZ1+-H

21st November, 2003
ZEECET-ACT-H

21st November, 2003
ZE5-F+-AZ1-H

Exercisable period

TERE

29th November, 2003 -

28th November, 2013

“EE-E+-ACtNRE
“E-ZE+t-AZTNH
29th November, 2003 -

—%

28th November, 2013

ZEECE+-AZNRE
ZE-ZF+-fC1NA
29th November, 2003 -

28th November, 2013

ZEECE+-AZNRE
ZE-ZET-AZTN\A
29th November, 2003 -

_%%

28th November, 2013

ZE+-f-tHEE

“R-ZEt-AZ1NA

ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 iR

Exercise
price

per share
sRERH
8
HKS

E

0452

0452

0452

0.452

Closing
price

at the date
of grant
RRLAH
PA Gl
HKS

#

0.440

0.440

0.440

0.440

BB

BREARFAR-_ZZT_FLA+T-HBKR
M BREFS EFenmAKEE
MEF 2RERBEEARNEE G
AR ] S B R L AR - AR R B Y
B BE N M S |AM 19 -

AR RBRER TR BB T

Number of share options

EREZE
At Granted  Exercised At
1st April, during during  31st March,
2003 the year the year 2004
R-2%=F R-BEME
BA-H EREH EnfiE =ZA=t-H
- 1,054,944 - 1,054,944
- 1054944 - 1054944
- 10,549,440 - 10,549,440
- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
- 15,659,328 - 15,659,328
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Exercise
price
Date of grant Exercisable period  per share
SRS
REAH figd %8
HKS
AT
Employees
k&
3rd October, 2003 22nd October, 2003- 0.345
ZE2-ETAZH 21st October, 2013
ZESCETACTIRE
ZE-ZE+RZT-H
21st November, 2003 29th November, 2003 - 0452
ZEE-F+-AZf-H 28th November, 2013
ZE%- ﬁir AZThAZ
“5-Zf+-fAZ+)\H
Sub-total
B
Total
@it

The closing price of the Company's shares immediately before

the date on which the options were exercised was HK$0.70.

The directors consider that it is not appropriate to value the
share options on the ground that certain crucial factors for
such valuation are variables which cannot be reasonably and
objectively determined. Any such valuation of the share options
based on speculative assumptions in respect of such variables
would not be meaningful and the results thereof may be

misleading to the shareholders of the Company.

BRE (#)

Number of share options

BREHR

Closing
price At Granted  Exercised At
atthe date  1st April, during during  31st March,
of grant 2003 the year the year 2004
RELEE R-23z% Rz §§|$

PA Gl BA-H EREH ERfiff ZRZt-

HKS

#7
0345 - 62,591,232 (29,450,560) 33,140,672
0440 - 10549440  (10,549,440) -

- 73140672 (40,000,000) 33,140,672

- 88,800,000 (40,000000) 48,800,000

EETEEREAHIARGRO KT ESR
0.70% Tt °

EER R ARZRABEZETHREEREZRE
FREREBEE BB R EBREEERD
TR E MOE o (E 0] B 5% 5 B BT R 18 R AR
AEERREECEET N MEFERIER
EARABBRR
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the balance sheet of the Company until such time as the
options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the
income statement in respect of the value of options granted in
the year. Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded by the Company in the share premium
account. Options which lapse or are cancelled are deleted

from the register of outstanding options.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors and chief
executives and their associates has any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporations (within the
meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Other than the option holdings disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, its holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate. None of the
directors of the Company, or their spouses or children under
18 years of age, had any rights to subscribe for the shares of

the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE EENREREGHNTZEBZRBERS

AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. At 1st April, 2003, the Group obtained general banking
facilities amounting to approximately HK$5,301,000 from
certain banks. Such general banking facilities were secured
by the pledge of time deposits of approximately
HK$2,319,000 and joint and several guarantees given by
Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Siu Chun.
Pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, these
joint and several guarantees were exempted from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements. The general banking facilities of
HK$5,000,000 had subsequently been terminated and
the joint and several guarantees given by Messrs. Chu
Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Siu Chun had been
released on 29th April, 2003.

2. During the year, the Group paid rental amounting to
HK$108,000 to Tungda Industrial. Details of such

transactions are set out in note 21 to the financial

RZEZE=FHA—HB AEEMRZRIRT
IS — R IRITEE 45,301,000 T2 &
—RRIRITIEEDAE BITF 50492,319,000% 7T
MEABREE KRERALERKBETEHR
A R AR BIE 2 EARVEE R R IRBI R |
MR ASE20% - WIEHRA R ERIEL Z &R
R ETRR 2 RIEE L REAHE
ZHE % E —MIRTT{EE H # 5,000,000
BTEER_ZET=FNA_-_+THABKIL"
mMABREA KRERTERKBELEHR
B R AR R 1E 2 R R B % bk o

FROAEEBRARATE (£8) X%
108,000 L - B SFBHMRIMEHRE
BEE21 -

statements.
Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which BREXEBEIN AAG HIERAF-RRKME
the Company, its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or N E S E AT B R RIS ET LA AR F 4R 3K
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of FREMBEERMARAEETREFREEL
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or BEEFEAREIEREH-

indirectly, subsisted at end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st March, 2004, the following substantial shareholder
(other than a director or chief executive of the Company) who
have interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FERR
RERARRREZRMEGIIFEIZ6HEFENE
AR R_TFTMF=A=+—H KT
TERR (RRARESHITHARGKIN RIRMHD
RERBOFHEAERIORE

Number of
issued ordinary

shares held Approximate

in the Company percentage

REXTAFE#HIT  of shareholding

Name of shareholder BRREE BB LERBAE BMOESH

Standard Exceed Limited (Note 1) Standard Exceed Limited (#f#£7) 560,000,000 50.7%

Tungda Industrial Limited (Note 1) RARIE (KB BERATF (M) 560,000,000 50.7%

Mr. Chu Chien Tung (Note 2) KEREAE (KiE2) 560,000,000 50.7%

Ms. Chan Pik Kam (Note 3) BREZL L (KfaE3) 560,000,000 50.7%
Notes: Wi &t -

1. Standard Exceed Limited is wholly and beneficially-owned by
Tungda Industrial which in turn is beneficially-owned as to
33.333349% by Mr. Chu Chien Tung, 33.333330% by Mr. Chu
Chick Kei and 33.33333% by Mr. Chu Siu Chun. Mr. Chu Siu
Chun has no management role in the Group.

2. Under Section 336 of the SFO, Mr. Chu Chien Tung is deemed
to have interests in all the shares of the Company which Tungda
Industrial has interests as he is entitled to exercise more than
one-third of the voting power at general meeting of Tungda
Industrial. The other two shareholders of Tungda Industrial, namely
Messrs. Chu Chick Kei and Chu Siu Chun, are not so deemed as
they are not entitled to exercise more than one-third of the
voting power at general meetings of Tungda Industrial.

3. Ms. Chan Pik Kam is the wife of Mr. Chu Chien Tung. Under
Section 336 of the SFO, she is deemed to have interest in all
the shares in which Mr. Chu Chien Tung is interested.

Save as disclosed above, no other person (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company) has an interest or a short
position in the shares and underlying shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group, in
aggregate, accounted for approximately 62.4% of the Group's
total turnover and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 14.4% of the total turnover. The five largest
suppliers of the Group in aggregate accounted for approximately
92.2% of its total purchases for the year. Purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 74.3% of its total
purchases.

None of the directors, their respective associates, or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has any interest
in any of the five largest customers and the five largest suppliers
of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2004.

All transactions between the Group and its customers were

carried out on normal commercial terms.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, the board of directors is not aware of any
business or interest of each director, management shareholder
and their respective associates that competes or may compete
with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interest which any such person has or may have with the

Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed

securities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee’s principal duties are the review and
supervision of the Company's financial reporting process and
internal control systems. The existing audit committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors, Mr. Hong Yong
Hwan, Mr. Zhu Lei Bo and Ms. Wu King Yin.

During the year, the then audit committee held four meetings
and performed the following duties:

1. reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March, 2003.

2. reviewed the unaudited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the three months ended
30th June, 2003, for the three and six months ended
30th September, 2003 and for the three and nine months
ended 31st December, 2003.

3. reviewed the financial reporting process, internal controls
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31st March, 2003, for the three months ended 30th June,
2003, for the six months ended 30th September, 2003
and for the nine months ended 31st December, 2003.

4. met with the external auditors and participated in the
re-appointment and assessment of the performance of

the external auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Rules 5.28 to 5.39 of the
GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31st March, 2004,
except that the non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors of the Company are not appointed for
specific terms and are subject to re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Company's Articles of Association.
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SPONSOR’S INTERESTS

As updated and notified by the Company’s sponsor, China
Everbright Capital Limited (the “Sponsor”), neither the Sponsor
nor its directors, employees or associates had any interests in
the securities of the Company or any member of the Group or
any rights to subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe
for the securities of the Company or any member of the Group
at 31st March, 2004, pursuant to Rules 6.35 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the agreement dated 19th July, 2002 entered into
between the Company and Core Pacific Yamaichi Capital
Limited, the former sponsor of the Company, the former
sponsor will receive the sponsorship fees for acting as the
Company's retained sponsor for the period from 26th July,
2002 to 31st March, 2005 or until the sponsor agreement is
terminated upon the terms and conditions set out therein.
Pursuant to the agreement dated 19th July, 2002 entered into
between the Company and the former sponsor whereby, for a
fee, the former sponsor would act as the Company's sponsor
for the period from 26th July, 2002 to 10th October, 2003.
The Company and the former sponsor have mutually agreed
to terminate the engagement with effect from 10th October,
2003.

Pursuant to the agreement dated 10th October, 2003 entered
into between the Company and the Sponsor, the Sponsor will
receive the sponsorship fees for acting as the Company's
sponsor for the period from 10th October, 2003 to 31st March,
2005 or until the sponsor agreement is terminated upon the
terms and conditions set out therein.
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AUDITORS

These financial statements were audited by Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who will not be seeking re-appointment as
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHU CHIEN TUNG

CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 15th October, 2004

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Report of the Auditors
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Deloitte.
=)

To the Shareholders of HRAFMBRAZRAERAATZERR
Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited (RESHETMA L2 ERAA])
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 55 to 93 AZBEITE T BE RSN ESSEEFIZIAR
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting REBLARGTRAGH B wE-
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND EESRREMEEZER

AUDITORS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial EXABEREEENT 2 B HRE-EREE
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial ERATUBHRRAEG EFNAERTEREKA
statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental B G HEK-

that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based AZEMOTZEENIBRBERTIEC &R HZ
on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our EHWBHRRELBLIER W ERN2BRER
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We S B TNEREMAR - AZHBMIT TR ARE
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any NERMEMEMALTE FABEERMEE-
other person for the contents of this report.
BASIS OF OPINION RRER
We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of RZBMITHIRRBREEGMAGRM 2 ZH
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of ERETESZ T ERZEENTR T XA T
Certified Public Accountants except that the scope of our work e B X R & RIMERIR -
was limited as explained below.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence BEZHEREAME S N BB ERETH
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial BERBBEEEB YRS NAEFHEEER
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant MBI mMARMEERMG RAG FIERS
estimates and judgments made by the directors in the AEREELGESE BEAfk EEEBECARE
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the AR EBEEERERTEERELZF TR
accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of Ko

the Company and the Group, consistently applied and

adequately disclosed.

We planned our audit so as to obtain all the information and RIZ AT HE EER TAER B URE — A

explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide % 8 Eﬂiﬁu F%Z\ﬁz BRI RBESBE FA%

us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to HBENTTRRES RN BE RASHBREREEST
whether the financial statements are free from material ﬁﬁ%%%&[ﬁL f”EHj/\iEﬁEE HEARZBENTT
misstatement. However, the evidence available to us was limited ESsEBREER FHEBEMmMT-

as explained below.

(@) Included in the balance sheet as at 31st March, 2004, @ HEEVWE BELIXBMAMNE H
are deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and 67,105,000/ 7T 7] € E%’ﬂ')\ﬁé:;ﬁgﬂ
equipment in the aggregate sum of HK$67,105,000, all EZH=+— HZﬁEE%’:% A 2 BIAIR
of which were paid in the form of cheques made payable ﬁif—ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%%iﬁf’ﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬁE
to cash in Hong Kong. We were unable to obtain sufficient EEREE R B REE AE4 EZ%
documentary evidence and explanations from the directors ST > B - B AR AT 4T % 1= 4
to satisfy ourselves as to the validity of these deposits. ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ%%%‘ﬁ%&* ﬁﬁrﬁnT%ZﬁL
Accordingly, we were unable to satisfy ourselves that WEREAERER BSENBEAEN B
deposits paid for the acquisition of property, plant and Eﬁﬁ%iﬁi‘%@ﬁ%‘f%ﬁﬂﬁé@?ﬂ%%%%‘J‘ﬁ?ﬂ%&
equipment are free from material misstatement. We were R A5 1EH 17,866,000 7T & A #&HE 7 FR it
also unable to satisfy ourselves that capital commitments I A B REH R -

for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment of
HK$17,866,000 disclosed in note 23 to the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

R K H & B B 8 £# R & R 24 78
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(b) Included in turnover for the year of approximately
HK$299,896,000 are recorded sales of approximately
HK$289,314,000 in respect of sales to customers outside
Hong Kong. We were unable to obtain sufficient
information and explanations to satisfy ourselves as to
the validity of these sales transactions, substantially all of
which were settled in the form of cash deposits into the
bank accounts of the Group in Hong Kong. We were also
unable to obtain sufficient evidence to satisfy ourselves
concerning the validity of the corresponding purchases
transactions, most of which were settled in cash.
Accordingly, we were unable to satisfy ourselves that sales
and cost of sales for the year ended 31st March, 2004
are free from material misstatement.

Any adjustment found to be necessary to the above amounts
would affect the net assets of the Group as at 31st March,
2004 and the profit of the Group for the year then ended.

In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the possible effect of the
limitations in evidence available to us as set out in the “basis
of opinion” section of this report, we are unable to form an
opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group
as at 31st March, 2004 and of the profit and cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended and as to whether the financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

In respect alone of the limitations on our work relating to the
deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment,
the sales to certain customers of the Group and their
corresponding purchases:

+  we have not obtained all the information and explanations
that we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit;
and

+ we were unable to determine whether proper books of
account had been kept.

EMPHASIS OF MATTERS

We have considered the section of the Management Discussion
and Analysis headed “Response to Auditors’ Opinion” included
in the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 31st
March, 2004. The views of the directors therein set out have
previously been considered by us but nevertheless our
disclaimer of opinion remains as stated in our report above.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

15th October, 2004

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Income Statement

RE WA RR

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2004 EHZ_—TZTNFE =A==+ —HItEE

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Research and development expenses

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Net profit for the year

Dividends

Earnings per share
— basic

— diluted

TEL
2 4 7

£ 7
Bt 48 A
BER%
AHEX
R %

5 R

BE KA

B % A1 o )
BiIA

FAFLF

AR

BRAMN
—EXK

—#8

Notes

ff it

2004
—EENF
HK3'000
FHET

299,896
(184,350)

115,546
730
(8,189)
(23,300)
(6,002)

78,785
(5

78,780
(4,025)

74,756

5,890

7.57 cents{l

7.47 cents{l

2003
—FE=F
HK3'000
FAETT

258,431
(166,630)

91,801
254
(10,018)
(14,609)
(5,843)

61,585
(161)

61,424
(3,411)

58,013

7.10 centsfl

N/A 5@
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
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At 31st March, 2004 R -_ZEZEmME=F=+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deposits paid for acquisition of

FERBEE
WEME BE &

property, plant and equipment B - AN

Current assets MBEE

Inventories FE

Debtors, deposits and prepayments FERER ZE Rk

B4 3k8

Pledged bank deposits BEMIRITER

Bank balances and cash RTBEFRRS
Current liabilities mB B &

Creditors and accrued charges T BR X K 5 & A

Amount due to ultimate holding JE A % A& 12 IR X 7]

company IE

Taxation payable J& 1~ 7218

Bank overdraft, secured BEEFRITES
Net current assets MBEETFE
Net assets BEFE
Capital and reserves BARREE

Share capital A& 7R

Reserves &

The financial statements on pages 55 to 93 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15th
October, 2004 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chu Chien Tung
KER
DIRECTOR
EF

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2004 2003

—eEms —2E=#

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

ks FHET F T

10 44,978 32,524

12 67,105 -

112,083 32,524

13 9,043 6,770
14

14,223 6,688

15 305 2,319

139,492 86,346

163,063 102,123

16 11,819 6,967

17 - 475

569 565

- 953

12,388 8,960

150,675 93,163

262,758 125,687

18 11,056 8,880

251,702 116,807

262,758 125,687

FS5RZA YU BHRERER _ZETWNF+ A+
FTREEESHAERKRETR THTIEER
REE:

Chu Chick Kei
KHER
DIRECTOR
EF



Balance Sheet
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At 31st March, 2004 R-_ZEZOE=F=+—H

2004 2003
—EEns —EE=4
Notes HKS$°000 HKZ'000
Bt & FET FAET

Non-current assets EMBNE E
Investments in subsidiaries M BARIRE 11 3,128 3,128

Current assets MEEE
Debtors and prepayments JRE M5 BR 7R K% TR AN R IE 196 117
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UL B B8~ 5] 5B 97,946 43921
Pledged bank deposit EEFRITER 305 303
Bank balances and cash RITEGFRRE 15,995 381
114,442 44722
Current liabilities mEAE

Accrued charges et &R 547 650
Net current assets MENEEFE 113,895 44,072
Net assets BEFE 117,023 47,200

Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital [N 18 11,056 8,880
Reserves R 20 105,967 38,320
117,023 47,200

Chu Chien Tung Chu Chick Kei
KEBR KER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF E

R K &4 ® B B8 # B 8 R 2 7
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2004 EZ_TTNF=A =+ —H|FFEF

At 1st April, 2002

New shares issued
Issue of shares upon private
placing on 26th July, 2003

Capitalisation issue of shares

Issue expenses in connection
with private placing

Net profit for the year

Transfer to general reserve

At 31st March, 2003

Issue of shares upon private

placing on 18th September, 2003 fLA+/\A

Issue expenses in connection
with private placing

Issue of shares upon exercise
of share options

Interim dividend paid

Net profit for the year

Transfer to general reserve

At 31st March, 2004

Share Share Special Translation General Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Bx  RGBE  RHRE EXRE -REE  REEA aif
HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HKS'000  HKS000 ~ HKS000  HK$00O  HKS'000
FET FET FET Tt FET FET FET
(note 20) (note 20)
(K#20) (Kizt20)
R-ZZ_F
mA-A - - - 9 126 21,388 21,523
BOMK 4,000 - (2,128) - - = 1,872
RZEE=%tA
ZtARBAERA
RERTHRA 2,220 53,280 - - - - 55,500
B ETRA 2,660 (2,660) - - - - -
RARENETRAR
- (11,221) - - - - (11,221)
FEREH = - - - - 58,013 58,013
ERE-RER - - - - 3,398 (3,398) -
RZTT=%F
ZA=t+-H 8,880 39,399 (2,128) 9 3,524 76,003 125,687
RZTT=%F
AAREZTRG 1776 57,542 - - - - 59,318
MARENE
k3 - (9,801) - - - = (9,801)
AERRESTRA
400 14,529 - - - - 14,929
BRF RS - - - - - (2,131) (2,131)
ENEF = = - - - 74,756 74,756
HERE - - - - - 4,648 (4,648) =
R-Z2ENE
=A=t-H 11,056 101,669 (2,128) 9 8,172 143,980 262,758

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 4k



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2004 E(Z_TTNFE=F =+ —H |FFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Interest income
Interest expense

Depreciation

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Increase in inventories

(Increase) decrease in debtors, deposits
and prepayments

Increase in creditors and accrued charges

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant
and equipment
Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

2004 2003
—EENF —ET=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
KEXBzRERE
B %5t A1 g A 78,780 61,424
A B A (700) (201)
A EBERXZ 5 161
e 3,070 447
EEZEEHAIZ
KEREME 81,155 61,831
FEE N (2,273) (1,395)
FEUWRRE R 12 & R IEF 3E
(3 hn) R/ A (7,535) 2,850
FERTRR R R EET B AE 4,852 3,408
REXBFAFRE 76,199 66,694
AT HLE (5) (161)
BERNEENED (2,645) (7,406)
AT B ERTER (1,375) =
KEXBMERSFE
72,174 59,127
BREEB2RERE
BEWME BERXE
(15,524) (32,497)
WEEME BB R&E
2R e (67,105) -
B\ IRITER
B () 2,014 (2,319)
2 F B 700 201
KEFEHFAR S FE (79,915) (34,615)

R K H # B R

BHoE R E R & F
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2004 EZ_TTNF=A =+ —H|FFEF

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares for
private placing
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise
of share options
Issue expenses in connection with
private placing
Advances from ultimate holding company
Repayments to ultimate holding company
Dividend paid

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Analysis of the balance of cash and
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash
Bank overdraft

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 4k
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BT RBRERRF]
ENEE

MERSMERSFR

RekReSEEE
PR S
FMzREehREEFE
A

FRz2\eMRSEFE
B H

RehkReFEERAE
R
RiTEFERAS
RITEX

2004
—EENF
HK3'000
FHET

59,318
14,929

(9,801)
501

(976)

(2.131)

61,840

54,099

85,393

139,492

139,492

139,492

2003
—FE=F
HK3'000
FAETT

55,500

(11,221)
475
(236)

44,518

69,030

16,363

85,393

86,346
(953)

85,393
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2004 E(Z_TTNFE=F =+ —H |FFE

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Company Law (2001 Second Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market ("GEM") of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange") since 26th
July, 2002.

The Company's ultimate holding company is Tungda
Industrial Limited (“Tungda Industrial”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Group are trading and
manufacturing of light source products.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first
time, the following Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS") — issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), the term of
HKFRS is inclusive of Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice (“SSAPs") and Interpretations approved by the
HKICPA.

SSAP 12 (Revised) Income taxes

The principal effect of the implementation of SSAP 12
(Revised) is in relation to deferred taxation. SSAP 12
(Revised) requires the adoption of a balance sheet liability
method, whereby deferred taxation is recognised in respect
of all temporary differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of
taxable profit, with limited exceptions. The adoption of
SSAP 12 (Revised) has had no significant effect on the
results for the current or prior accounting periods.

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment is required.

SEEARVBHRREREE

ARBRERAEFERFE(ZTT—FF
“RERIR) ERERBEMKI LSRR R
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2004 EZ_TTNF=A =+ —H|FFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. The financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting

policies adopted are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31st March each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective

date of disposal respectively, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances
within the Group have been eliminated on consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and any identified impairment loss.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income statement.

The cost of construction in progress will not be amortised
until they are put into use and are transferred to a specific
category of property, plant and equipment when the

construction is completed.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Land use right Over the unexpired term

of leases
Buildings 20 years or the unexpired
term of lease, whichever
is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment
Leasehold improvement 50%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicle 20%

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised over
the life of the project from the date of commencement of
commercial operation subject to maximum period of five

years.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

TESHBE (&)

ME-BERRE ()
ERIRBUINZOE BERRBUER
B RGFT AR FERATIFEXRTE WS
XA

=+ b {5 AR 4 1% & # 1H 2P
g 204F s 1% 4 #4 78 HA
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R B REE 20%
HEWEEE 50%
5 5B I i 23 10%
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

Impairment loss is recognised as expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where
applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using
the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to
completion and cost to be incurred in marketing, selling
and distribution.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate
applicable.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2004 E(Z_TTNFE=F =+ —H |FFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the income statement because it excludes items of
income and expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years, and it further excludes income statement
items that are never taxable and deductible.

Deferred taxation is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred taxation liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

8.

TESHBE (&)

BiIE
FrSHAXiEREENREELEH AR
B

BRENRADRANFERRBENGTE-
ERFEMN T EBRECBEEMFENHER
B AT HIB 2 WA RFEIRE T BER
TREX TN 2 BERRIAR  WEKAR
RETHIAER AR

BERERARBEHEMBREANEERER
AR (B B 5t B B AR B A P8R A AR FE B &
ZEBAENRAIWE 2 HIE WIAEER
BERBEEIAK BEEHRBRE—MHHAE
ERMERZE T AR MEERBEE
AN B AIREELE R IAB) A AT & i Z 58
ZIERT SN TARR -HE R EEh
BE (REHE) XBNAER - EITE
MERMNAEA BN R HZEMEER
BfE (RBAMKIN FELE EHEERA
B TR

BEERBABIARHBRARZREME
HEZERREREZR TUER - IAEE
BRENENERZR2BO RERKEZHA
EETAERA RS RER BT T RER -

BERERBEEEZLRAEIREBEGERSE
Bl WHORZERRTGAMAIBE TR A AR
MAHAKTFTREZEERR-

R K H & B B 8 £# R & R 24 78

ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 &k




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %% ok KR

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2004 EZ_TTNF=A =+ —H|FFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised. Deferred taxation is charged or
credited in the income statement, except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which

case the deferred taxation is also dealt with in equity.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars
are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars
are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Gains and losses arising on exchange are
dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
overseas operations are translated at exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as
equity and transferred to the Group's translation reserve.
Such translation differences are recognised as income or
as expenses in the period in which the operation is
disposed of.

Operating leases
Rentals payment under operating leases are charged to
the income statement on a straight line basis over the

period of the relevant lease terms.

Retirement benefits

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for staff in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and the mandatory provident fund scheme for
staff in Hong Kong are charged as expense as they fall
due.
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business segments

The Group is organised into 2 operating divisions —

manufacture and trading of house brand light source

products and the distribution of agency brand light source

products. These two operating divisions are the basis on

which the Group reports its primary segment information.

Segment information about these business is presented

as below:

INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended
31st March, 2004

Turnover

Result

Segment result

Unallocated corporate expenses
Interest income, net of finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Net profit for the year

LN Ed
HE_—_ZTZF
ZHA=+—HIFE
]

ES

DEEE

F iVl VNG 3

MEYA (FIBR B E B AS)

BR 750 A1 )4t 7
B

FRFEF

EXERDEEHR

RERE DA

A6 IR 5 1 E T AR AR R MK BB P : K &
mERREMNRENE S ER A KRKE
an & 't R am B 2D BH SR 5 o A E MR EH IR
BN AREREETZOMERHEL RS
RIRHE £

=

=11/

Z2EXRBOBRERDIT251 T :

House brand  Agency brand

light source light source
products products
5 mMe KREHZE  Consolidated
XRE R XRE R me
HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000
FET FET FET
145,329 154,567 299,896
102,856 11,604 114,460
(36,375)
695
78,780
(4,024)
74,756
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2004 EZ_TTNF=A =+ —H|FFEF

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4,
Business segments (Continued)

House brand
light source

EXERDEER (8)
EBRBOM ()

Agency brand
light source

products products
rEmhE KRERME  Consolidated
KRE m KRE m me
HK8'000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FHET FET
BALANCE SHEET EERER
At 31st March, 2004 R-FFNEF
ZA=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 120,902 6,445 127,347
Unallocated corporate assets ROBRAREE 147,799
Consolidated total assets REBEERA 275,146
Liabilities BE
Segment liabilities k- U=NET 8,036 2,028 10,064
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEARERE 2,324
Consolidated total liabilities REafERs 12,388
House brand  Agency brand
light source light source
products products
5w KEHE  Unallocated Consolidated
XRE RRE @ Syl o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
OTHER INFORMATION Hitt g
For the year ended BE_TETNMEF
31st March, 2004 ZHA=+—HI#FE
Additions of property, plant RNEDE BERRZE
and equipment 15,509 - 15 15,524
Deposits paid for acquisition of W% B E Kk &
property, plant and equipment  Z & & & 67,105 - - 67,105
Depreciation of property, ME-BERZETE
plant and equipment 2,369 - 701 3,070

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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4.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended
31st March, 2003

Turnover

Result
Segment result

Unallocated corporate expenses
Interest income, net of finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Net profit for the year

BALANCE SHEET
At 31st March, 2003

Assets
Segment assets

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

LON: £.3

HE-—ET=

===

ZHA=+—HIFE
EEE

ES
GECES

ADERAIRX
MEBWA (R R E K AK)

BR 75t A )4t 7
B

FRAFF

EERGX

HR-FEE=

— =T =

=A=+—H

4.

House brand

EXRERTEER (#)
RBRBOM ()

Agency brand

light source light source

products products
5 mme KREHZE  Consolidated
XRER XRER ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TFHET
102,643 155,788 258,431
75,166 16,635 91,801
(30,417)
40
61,424
(3,411)
58,013
37,608 2,957 40,565
94,082
134,647
5,056 1,423 6,479
2,481
8,960
R K H 4 & R 8 2 R 8 R 2 7
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

LN €.

BE—_TZT=F

OTHER INFORMATION
For the year ended
31st March, 2003

Additions of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Geographical segments

House brand
light source

4.

EXERDEER (8)
EBRBOM ()

Agency brand
light source

ZA=Z+—HUFE

RENE BERRE

NE -BELRENE

products products
e Mg RERE Unallocated  Consolidated
XRER KRER RAE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
30,582 - 1,915 32,497
81 - 366 447

& 2 A

The Group's operations are located in the PRC and Hong

Kong. The following table provides an analysis of the

Group's turnover by geographical market, irrespective of

the origin of the goods:

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong
Hong Kong

Europe

North America

Others

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 4k
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EE=M

H At 3 @

AEERTERBEMMBEERLE TRH

IR ERMETSED (T

) MEREDMN:

mEMNRE
Turnover
]

2004 2003
—EENF —EFE=F
HK$'000 HKg'000
FET FAET
144,465 143,253
10,582 12,698
96,985 89,922
32,869 12,558
14,995 -
299,896 258,431
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2004 E(Z_TTNFE=F =+ —H |FFE

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4., BEHERSBER (&)
Geographical segments (Continued) W& D (&)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of UTREEEMEMRITOSBREER
segment assets and additions to property, plant and EERREME BERZHD

equipment analysed by the geographical areas in which
the assets are located:

Additions to and
deposits paid for
acquisition of
plant property,

Carrying amount and equipment
of consolidated NEYE- -BE
segment assets REBHERKBEDE-
FEDHE BERRE
EEREE ZREMAR
2004 2003 2004 2003
“EENE | —TT=F | ZBFWNE | —_TT=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET FET TET
Hong Kong BB 112,133 14,938 15 1,915
The PRC, excluding HRE B
Hong Kong BB 163,013 119,709 82,614 30,582
275,146 134,647 82,629 32,497

R K &4 ® B B8 # B 8 R 2 7
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5. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Profit from operations has been arrived
at after charging:

Directors’ remuneration (Note)
— Fees
— Other emoluments
— Retirement benefits contributions
(note 25)

Other staff costs
Retirement benefits contributions
for other staff (note 25)

Total staff costs

Auditors’ remuneration
— Current year

— Underprovision in prior year

Bad debts written off
Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense
Depreciation
Operating lease rentals in respect

of land and buildings

and after crediting:

Interest income from bank balances

and deposits

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BERARRIEN S

e
THREFHRLE
HEHS

WEEEA:

RITETFREFFRD
M S A

2004

—semE
HK$000
FHET

3,348

49

3,397
4,797

272

8,466

700

700

184,350
3,070

1,485

700

2003
—EE=

— == —

HK$'000

TET

2,500

37

2,537
3,610

300

6,447

680
50

730

166,630
447

1,163
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2004 E(Z_TTNFE=F =+ —H |FFE

5. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (Continued)
Note:

Emoluments of directors and highest paid employees
(i) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors
of the Company are as follows:

Fees: e
Executive AT
Non-executive AT
Independent non-executive B IEBAT
Other emoluments to HITEEEMME:
executive directors:
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF
Retirement benefits contributions RARAE R
Other emoluments to FMTEFEMB S
non-executive directors:
Salaries and other benefits e REHMEF
Retirement benefits contributions RARAE R

The executive directors received total emoluments of
HK$1,312,000, HK$1,052,000, HK$662,000 and
HK$254,000 respectively for the year ended 31st March,
2004 and received total emoluments of HK$1,072,000,
HK$872,000, HK$551,000 and nil respectively for the year
ended 31st March, 2003.

Two of the non-executive directors received total
emoluments of HK$63,000 and HK$54,000 respectively
for the year ended 31st March, 2004 and received total
emoluments of HK$42,000 and nil respectively for the year
ended 31st March, 2003. The other non-executive directors
did not receive any emoluments for the two years ended
31st March, 2004.

ReERAN (&)
it

ESkBEEFEENS

0]

FEBXNARBDEEFZHMEFBET:

2004 2003
—zEmE —zE=s
HK$000 HKg'000
FER FHET
3,237 2,460

43 35
3,280 2,495
111 40

6 2

117 42
3,397 2,537

HE-_TZNE=A=1+—HIEFE AT
EESFTKEIBN £ Z%E 5 5 &1,312,000%
JC ~ 1,052,000/% 7T * 662,000/% 7T &
254,000 L MBE T =F=A=1
—HLEFEMKBRZBMESRBS R A
1,072,000/ 7T ~ 872,000/ JT * 551,00078 JT
T

HE_ZTZNE=-A=+—ALEE HEF
MEIERTESMURBZHMESRES R A
63,000/ 7T % 54,0008 0 MBEE=-TZT =
F=ZA=+—BLFEMERZMEHEE
A5 B A42,0008 TR T -HE-TTMF
—A=t+—BHLMEFE EHIFENTES
7 42 U B AT {A] BN < o
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2004 EZ_TTNF=A =+ —H|FFEF

5. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (Continued) 5. RERAN (&)
Note: (Continued) Bzt (&)

Emoluments of directors and highest paid employees ESkBEFEEME (&)
(Continued)
(i) Emoluments of the directors of the Company were within

the following bands:

(i) AAREEHWS DN FUATEE:

2004 2003

—EENEF —EE=F

Number Number

A N

Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z — 1,000,000 7T 7 5
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 JT — 1,500,000/ 7T 2 1
9 6

(i) Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2003: three) are directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note

(i) AEBREZRSHFALBENG (Z2Z=
FZB)ARAER EBEFBEHN LEX
MR R(D) - B2 (CET=F WA)

(i) and (ii) above. The emoluments of the remaining one ATHB ST :
(2003: two) individuals are as follows:
2004 2003
—EENF —ET=F
HK$000 HKg'000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits o REfMhER 520 421
Retirement benefits contributions R R AR K 12 19
532 440
(iv) During the year, no emolument has been paid by the Group vy FR-XEETERAEEESHALT (B

E=ZRES) XNEMME ER/RSIMA
SR I S (B R 7 SR ok 1 A B I 4 (B

TETFE) FANEESREXR
EWMEEMMS -

to the five highest paid individuals (including directors and
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2003: nil).
No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 4k
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FINANCE COSTS 6. BERA
2004 2003
—EENF —ET=
HK$’000 HK3'000
FET FHET
Interest on: THBBEZHME:
Bank borrowings wholly repayable BARIFRNTBHER
within five years ZIRITER 5 -
Reimbursement of interest paid by MEREERAD A
ultimate holding company on behalf RAKRE X8y
of the Group FBE - 161
5 161
TAXATION 7. BE
2004 2003
—EENF —ET=
HK$’000 HK3'000
FET FHET
Current taxation: ANERRR IR :
Hong Kong Profits Tax EENEH 3,186 2,874
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REEMEH 838 537
4,024 3,411

The charge for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
17.5% (2003: 16%) of the estimated assessable profit
for the year.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
two subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to exemption
from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two years commencing
from their first profit-making year of operation and
thereafter, they are entitled to a 50% relief from PRC
Enterprise Income Tax for the following three years. The
first profit-making year of the subsidiaries in PRC
commenced on 1st January, 2001 and 1st January, 2003
respectively.

B ENSH X H THIRF A G5t EER B
J/\/{-|750/0<:%E;EE£|E : 160/0> %ﬁ:$§+:§ro

R BA BRI KR A A2 7] 5 R P R
RAAREEERNFERTMFEER R
BAPBECEAGH XAIRER =FERH
REAS0%F B EMEH -ZEDENE
AANBEEBMNEFEDINR _—TT—F—
A—BR-ZZTE=F—F—BH%K-

R K H 4 & B # £ R

F R 2 8
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7. TAXATION (Continued) 7. BiE (&)
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit AEERBAX HATRSFBERARE ZHRH
before taxation per income statements as follows: A& A B BRI T
2004 2003
—2ENEF —TT=F
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FET FHET
Profit before taxation B B A& F 78,780 61,424
Tax at the domestic income ¥R 7R 4 P A5 51 B K
tax rate ATEZBE 13,787 17.5 9,828 16.0
Tax effect of expenses not AR 2
deductible for tax purposes ZHBTE 212 0.2 58 -
Tax effect of income not BRERBIKA
assessable in for tax purposes 2B E (20) - (128) (0.2)
Effect of preferential tax rates REAMREER
of subsidiaries operating Sl i) PN
in other jurisdiction CEENEZR (10,667) (13.5) (6,317) (10.2)
Others Hfth 712 0.9 (30) -
Taxation charge to income iGN E i3
statement ZTIE 4,024 5.1 3,411 5.6
No provision for deferred taxation has been made in both BRFIPHBETERN WU ERSFER
years as the amount involved is insignificant. BIRERIAER-
8. DIVIDENDS 8. RE
2004 2003
—EENF —TET=F
HK$’000 HK3'000
FET FHET
Interim dividend paid of HK$0.0020 B 8k B 8 % 0.0020
per share (2003: nil) BT (ZEZT=F:%) 2,131 -
Final dividend proposed of HK$0.0034 R R HA AR 2 8 #20.0034
per share (2003: nil) BT (ZET=F:4) 3,759 -
5,890 =

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 4k
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9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the earnings per share is based on the

following data:

Earnings
Net profit for the year for the purposes

of basic and diluted earnings per share

Number of shares
Weighted average number of shares for
the purpose of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares

on share options

Weighted average number of shares for

the purpose of diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share has been presented in =2
prior year as the Company did not have any dilutive B &
potential shares outstanding in that year. e

9. BRER

2F
At EERERR

BERNRNFELF

K& A
A EERERAN
Z B A pnAE S 5 8

BEE R A EE
ZEBREE

SHE SRR

2 Bf) AT B

BRANTE NN BEAE:

2004 2003

—EENF —TT=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

74,756 58,013

986,933,000 817,447,000
13,485,000
1,000,418,000

/)

RARAR EFEXEEFAEEEN

oY E2INZFEERETR

R K H # #

BB E R AR 2 8
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10. ME-BENKRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Leasehold

land and and  improve- Plant and Con-

buildings equipment ment machinery Motor  struction
HBEL#h HH-XE HENE BER  vehicle in progress Total
kgF k& Kk B RE  HBIE @zt
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TET T T T TET TET TET

THE GROUP r5E

COST RA

At Tst April, 2003 R-ZEZ=FNA—-A - 1252 960 2,182 - 28,830 33,224
Additions HE - 63 - 429 387 14,645 15,524
Transfer g 21,550 186 - 21,739 - (43,475) -
At 31st March, 2004 R=-BEME=A=1-A 21,550 1,501 960 24,350 387 - 48,748
DEPRECIATION il

At Tst April, 2003 R-_ZZ=FNA—-A - 275 240 185 - - 700
Provided for the year ~ F R 622 254 480 1,697 17 - 3,070
At 31st March, 2004 R=-BEME=A=1-A 622 529 720 1,882 17 - 3,770
NET BOOK VALUES REFE

At 31st March, 2004 R=-ZEMF=A=1-A 20,928 M 240 22,468 370 - 44,978
At 31st March, 2003 RZZE=F=A=1—-H - 977 720 1,997 - 28,830 32,524
The Group's buildings are situated in the PRC and are AEB 2 BFURPE HRE L A
held under land use right for 50 years expiring on 8th BE RZZEA=F_A/\BE®R KH50

February, 2053. G

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 4k
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11.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost

LMD ERAE

M. WELAARE

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31st March,

2004 are set out as follows:

Name of company
NAER

Bright Growth Resources
Limited*

Bright World Resources
Limited*

Direct Intelligent Limited*

Ultra Modern Technology
Limited*

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
HRAL/
L

British Virgin Islands
ABRIES

British Virgin Islands
RBRAEE

British Virgin Islands
ABRIES

British Virgin Islands
ABRIES

Place of
operation
Repy

Hong Kong
BR

Hong Kong
R

Hong Kong

&

Hong Kong
BR

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BETR
BERE/
T RA

USs1
E

US$4
4ET

Us$1

E

Uss2
2ET

Directly

THE COMPANY

2004
—semE
HK$000
FHET
3,128

YN

2003
—ET=F
HK$'000
T
3,128

Percentage of
nominal value
of issued share
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company
AR
BRIRE/
Ef R
HERDL
Indirectly
E& &

100% =

100% =

100% =

100% =

ARARZHMBARAR-_EEMF=A=1
—BZHBEET:

Principal activities

EF:33

Investment holding

RRBHR

Investment holding

RAZK

Not yet commenced

business
HAEE

Investment holding

RRBHR

R K H & B B 8 £# R & R 24 78
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11.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company
NAER

Tungda Electrical & Lighting
Limited (“Tungda Electrical")*

RAERBRAA
(IRREX])?

Light Power (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.*
tz n R CRIN) FR A

Tungda Lighting (Fujian)
Co,, Ltd. ("Tungda Fujian”)*
RARA (BR)ARAF
(TRARR])*

Note:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
HRAL/
L

Hong Kong
BR

PRC
i

PRC
i

Place of

M. WEBAARE ()

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BBTR

operation BrRx/

BEhE FMRA
Hong Kong HK$4
B 4B T
PRC HK$10,000,000
H 10,000,000/ 7T
PRC RMB27,000,000
# AR %27,000,0007C

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at

31st March, 2004 or at any time during the year.

*  Private companies with limited liability.

*  Wholly foreign-invested enterprise with limited liability.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 4k

#

wfat -

Percentage of

nominal value

of i

ssued share

capital/registered

capital held

by the Company
AR

e

RRA/
ERRA

HERDL
Directly

EE

Indirectly
GF:

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

EE39

Trading of
light source products

BELREM

Manufacturing of
light source products

REXRER

Manufacturing of
light source products

REXRER

R-ZZZME=A=+—HHFAERER $5]
BEMNMEBARAEMHAREEETES-

BEREFHLERA-

Y BREMEAIBHEERE-
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12.

13.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

THE GROUP

During the year ended 31st March, 2004, the Group has
paid certain deposits, in aggregate, amounting to
approximately HK$67,105,000 to two machine and
equipment manufacturers in the PRC in relation to the

purchases of machinery and equipment in the PRC.

As the deposits were paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, the amount was shown as

non-current in the balance sheet.

INVENTORIES
Raw materials R
Finished goods ELK ah

At the balance sheet date, included above are raw
materials and finished goods of HK$402,000 (2003: nil)
and HK$619,000 (2003: HK$703,000) which are carried

at net realisable value, respectively.

12.

13.

WREME BERRBZRENRK

rEE
HE-_SZME=F=1+—HILEE K&
EpEERERIBEBARINEELD
67,105,000 7T 2 &2 & T B M K28 Rk
BERER

MRZERER/WBME BERERE2M
FEEREEREBERAFRPEB 25

H
THE GROUP
AEE
2004 2003
=% ¥ L.p —TE=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
2,124 1,585
6,919 5,185
9,043 6,770

REER TA LB REREK DS
B 402,000 T (ZEBEE=F:F) K&
619,000/ T (ZZFZ =4 :703,000% 7T)
Ty AR BB FE AR

R K &4 ® B B8 # B 8 R 2 7
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14.

15.

16.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 14.
An aged analysis of the Group's trade debtors, included

in debtors, deposits and prepayments, is as follows:

Within three months =EAN

Four months to six months & A 2 < E A
Seven months to twelve months +EAZE+=MEAR
More than one year —F LA E

The Group allows credit periods ranging from 7 to 90

days to its trade customers.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 15.
THE GROUP

The amounts represent the bank deposits pledged to banks

to secure the general banking facilities granted to the

Group amounting to HK$302,000 (2003: HK$5,301,000)

by such banks.

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 16.
An aged analysis of the Group's trade creditors, included

in creditors and accrued charges, is as follows:

Within three months =EAR

Four months to six months M Az <A A
Seven months to twelve months +tEAE+=ZEA
More than one year — &L E

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 4k

BWERR RERBEMNKER

AR BEF ARYIRR RE RIBNRENE
WE ZERFERESTOT

2004 2003
—EENF —TI=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,640 1,240

236 178

57 56

12 9

1,945 1,483

AEE-RETHESEFPNEESRHL
BEATBRE.

BHEFRTER

rEHE
SHEDERAKEME - RRITEER
302,000 T2 fF RIELH (ZF T =4
5,301,000/ 7T ) °

AN
=

PE A BE 3 R PE 3T %
7K 82 W5 A B8 1 BE R J 51 2 R 40 A
SESER AT

2004 2003
—EENF —EE 4
HKS$°000 HK$'000
F# Fib 7
3,224 1,969

284 53

24 21

6 78

3,538 2,121




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %% %ok MR

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2004 E(Z_TTNFE=F =+ —H |FFE

17. AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

18.

THE GROUP

The amount was unsecured, interest-free and fully repaid

during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Shares of HK$0.01 each

Authorised:
At 1st April, 2002
Increase in authorised
share capital on
24th May, 2002

At 31st March, 2003
and 2004

Issued and fully paid:

At 1st April, 2002

Issue of shares upon Group
Reorganisation

Issue of shares upon private
placing on 26th July, 2002

Issue of shares by
capitalisation of the share
premium account

At 31st March, 2003

Issue of shares upon private
placing on 18th
September, 2003

Issue of shares upon
exercise of share options
on 26th February, 2004

At 31st March, 2004

BREMEC.OIET ZKH

ETE
R-ZZBEZE_FWME—H
RZTEZE-_FHA

—tmBEEnz
A TE R

R-BE=ZFR-_ZZWNF

ZA=t+-~H

BETRHE:
R-ZZEZE_FMWA—H
REBEHRF

BITRAD
RZZEZEZF+HAZ+XH
EITIARERZEITRMG
15 AR 10 5 (B BR B 78
BARETRG

1% 10
RZEENFE_R -+, H
1715 BB AR HE B
TR 1D
R-ZEENE=F=+—H

17. BENBRER QAT RE

AEE

ZERRASEER RERERFATHRE

o

Bl

18. BRA

Number of
shares Amount
BRHEE K]
Notes HK8'000
o3 FETT
39,000,000 390
(a) 4,961,000,000 49,610
5,000,000,000 50,000
'[ —
(b) 399,999,999 4,000
(©) 222,000,000 2,220
(d) 266,000,000 2,660
888,000,000 8,880
(e) 177,600,000 1,776
) 40,000,000 400
1,105,600,000 11,056
R K 3 & ® B 8/ # KR fR 2 =
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18. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes:

(a

(b)

©

(d)

(e

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder of
the Company dated 24th May, 2002, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from HK$390,000
to HK$50,000,000 by creation of an additional
4,961,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 8th July, 2002, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Tungda Industrial and Messrs. Chu
Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Siu Chun, pursuant to
which the Company issued 399,999,999 shares credited
as fully paid to Standard Exceed Limited, the nominee of
Tungda Industrial, and crediting as fully paid at par the 1
share issued nil paid by the Company on 19th December,
2001 and held by Standard Exceed Limited as the
consideration for acquisition of the companies comprising
the Group from Tungda Industrial and the loan to Tungda
Electrical of HK$872,000. These shares issued rank pari
passu in all respects with the then existing issued shares of
the Company.

On 26th July, 2002, the Company issued and allotted a
total of 222,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each at the
price of HK$0.25 per share. These shares issued rank pari
passu in all respects with the then existing issued shares of
the Company.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the sole shareholder
of the Company dated 8th July, 2002, share premium
account of the Company being credited, the sum of
HK$2,660,000 being part of the amount then standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company
be capitalised by issuing 266,000,000 shares of a par value
of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company, credited as
fully paid at par, to the holders of shares registered in the
register of members of the Company as at the close of
business on 8th July, 2002 in proportion as nearly as
possible to their respective shareholdings and that the board
of directors or a committee thereof be and is authorised to
do at such things as may be necessary to give offset to
such capitalisation issue.

On 18th September, 2003, the Company issued and allotted
177,600,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each at the price of
HK$0.334 per share to provide the additional capital to
finance the Group's business expansion.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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18. A& (%)
Mt at

@ BEARAK-—RRBAA-_TT_FAH
AZtHNAZEBERZR NARFEILR
4,961,000,000/% & R E {H0.017 7T 2 K
7 #E E R’ A B 390,000 T & &=
50,000,000/ JT °

(b) R=FTZ=_F+ANB ARRHEEATE
(@) REREE KERTERKRE
EEFIVEBEWHZE Bt AAFRARAT
¥ (£E) 2RI A Standard Exceed Limited
£ ??399 999,999% A BRI ES B R {7 - I
BARRR=ZZTE—F+-_A+HBERE
RE %’é‘ﬁ il F Standard Exceed LimitedFf 5
ZIBRBRMIZEEEARIMEZRS ERAR
AITE (&) WERNARAEBZEA
Al R 4a TR AEZEE 872,000 7T 2 X
B-ZEROGESTEHALARAAERRED
BIIRNDEZBREES -

(00 R-ZEE_FtA-+ B KXQAREER
Bmo25 itz BRETREEE H
222,000,000/% & R EI1E0.01% 7T 2 ¥7 Ik
M ZERGES TEHALARARERRED
BOROD=ZERSER-

(d) BEAQRE-—RBRIRAMHAE-_ZTZT_F+
ANBZEBRZR AATZRORBER
FEEH A 2,660,000/ 7T 2 B EE A AR A
ARERARAARREMR _TT_Ft
BNBEEEMERBMEBRMHBEAZ
SEFRELLAIREENAARIERR A
N T T ZEME 2 266,000,000 K A A
BRARPEFREECOVB TZBRHDMBETE
RKZBRMDEERERTHOEBESE RIULE
EENEEHEE e REREETHEERZE
NMEBEITZHESEE

() R=ZFEZ=FAA+N\B ARQ Tiﬁﬁ’iﬁ&
9 0.3347% &t 2 8 1% % 17 &k B %
177,600,0001%&Hﬁﬁ@o.oﬁ%fcz%ﬁlﬁ
D BEURHBNERERRNEEET R
Z2E®-
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18.

19.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(f)  On 26th February, 2004, the Company issued and allotted
10,549,440 shares and 29,450,560 shares of HK$0.01 each
at HK$0.452 and HK$0.345 per share respectively upon
the exercise of share options granted to certain employees.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 12th July, 2002 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible persons, including the
directors of the Company, full time and part time
employees of the Group and the consultant or adviser of
the Group. Pursuant to the Scheme, the board of directors
may grant share options to the eligible persons to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Options granted
must be taken up within a period of 28 days from the
date of options granted and upon payment of HK$1 as
the consideration for the options granted. Unless otherwise
terminated or altered, the Scheme will remain in force for

a period of ten years.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme together with
shares previously issued pursuant to options exercised
under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time and the
maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any one eligible person in any 12-
month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share

capital of the Company from time to time.

The subscription price shall be determined by the board
of directors and notified to the eligible persons and shall
be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares on the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the offer date, which must be a
trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares on
the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the

offer date; (iii) the nominal value of a share.

18. A (#&)

et (&)

) MR-ZEZWFE-_A-—+ "B EETETE
BrHEREETE AQAHANIEER
0.4528 7L % 0.3458 7L 2 [B1& 31T R EL 8
10,549,4400% % 29,450,5600% & A% m (&
0.01 BT 2R M-

19. BB HE G &

ARAR_ZTT_FLA+_BRMAER
A8 ([FH8)) EERARERAL B
ARREF AEEERERBEERAS
B AR ER SR ER R EE R
BEtE EE@ARNAEBALIRTARE
ARRB AR 2 FERHE - B IR L AN R
Mg B ERE AT — T N\ B BRI A0
MBABMIABTZREB-BRIESTRIERK
EHRERT &SN BN T FERER-

R BRI RE R h 2 BB A P S B 2 B fn)
2B LR - ERSLARESITERRER
TZBR TREEARTTESHTRA
10% - MPAMER+ — 8 A A AT ge R E R &
BRATRBZBREMS R ZBRNDEE
ER-BAFSBEARRTEEETHRA

10%0°

RABEEHEZTSEET YANEEERA
T BTRERUT=Fh&SE: (DR
FrERERMBRONELBERES A (KA
PBRARRZA) ERIER 2K E: (i) B
FERKRMBEROEZRRELEREE A
AAERXZAERFERZFHEHE: &
(iR EE-

R K &4 ® B B8 # B 8 R 2 7
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19. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)
The following tables disclose details of the Company's

share options held by employees (including directors) and

movements in such holdings during the year ended 31st

March, 2004:
Exercise
price
Date of grant per share
R HE BRITHEE
HK$
B
3.10.2003 0.345
21.11.2003 0.452

Exercisable
period

THEEE

22.10.2003 - 21.10.2013
29.11.2003 - 28.11.2013

Details of the movements of the share options during the

year held by the directors of the Company included in

the above table are as follows:

Exercise
price Exercisable
Date of grant per share period
R HE BRITHEE TEHE
HK$
BT
21.11.2003 0.452 29.11.2003 - 28.11.2013

Note: The options were exercised with closing price of HK$0.70
of the Company shares at the exercise date.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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19. MRS B ()
FTREBBE-FENF=A=t+—AL
FEARE (RREEF) MBARARRE
ZEERRESBBE 2D

Outstanding
at 1.4.2002
and 1.4.2003
R=B2=F Outstanding
A-Bk Granted Exercised  at 31.3.2004
ZBEZF during during R-ZEME
mA-A the year theyear =A=1-H
ief K AT FRRH FRiTE ief K AT
(Note)
(Kzt)

= 62,591,232 (29,450,560) 33,140,672
= 26,208,768 (10,549,440) 15,659,328

= 88,800,000  (40,000,000) 48,800,000

ERFBAD T EFRERFEMR 2
BEREENT

Outstanding

at 1.4.2002

and 1.4.2003
R=B2=F Outstanding
A-Bk Granted Exercised  at 31.3.2004
ZBEZF during during R-ZEME
mA-A the year theyear =A=+-H

4 K17 FRARH ERfTHE 4 R 1T

= 15,659,328 = 15,659,328

Bzt REBREETEE R AQRRMKME
£0.708 T °
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19. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 19. B HESTE (&)
Total consideration received from the directors and FRARRARESETREEEMTERER
employees for taking up the options granted during the MR @RERIZBELT(ZET=F:
year amounted to HK$13 (2003: nil). )
During the year ended 31st March, 2003, no options HE-_TT=-F=-A=1+—HLFE Bif
were granted or exercised under the Scheme since its ZIER 4 B B AT - BB IR B SR AT I AR
date of adoption. ¥
20. RESERVES 20. f#1®
THE GROUP rEM
(a) Pursuant to the relevant accounting rules and @) REFHEBERNFEEKIZZINGRE
regulations applicable to foreign investment Rz EFRARA G 2 & B b B
enterprises established in the PRC, the Group’s PRC B A RIZAEKERE RN DR 1008
subsidiaries are required to transfer not less than BE-—RRER BEZLACERTEET
10% of its profit after taxation to the general reserve AR AR 2 500% 45 I < B FE 7 78 B
fund until the balance of such fund has reached BHEEE RSB RSIE MRA - F Al
50% of their respective registered capital. The TERID—RFEBEE 2 &EF-

balances of the general reserve fund cannot be
reduced except where approval is obtained from the
relevant PRC authority to setoff accumulated losses

or increase capital.

(b) The special reserve represents the difference between (b) FRIFEHEEMEBHRBAR 2RHE
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired BEEARABBERAEENR_ZTT_F
subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company's tHAETZEBEBEHAKEMEZETR®D
shares issued for the acquisition under the group HERZZHE-

reorganisation of the Group took place in July 2002.

R K &4 ® B B8 # B 8 R 2 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 &k
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20. RESERVES (Continued)

THE COMPANY

At 1st April, 2002

Premium arising from issue
of shares for cash in private
placing on 26th July, 2002

Capitalisation issue of shares

Issue expenses in connection
with private placing

Net loss for the year

At 31st March, 2002

Premium arising from issue
of shares for cash in private
placing on 18th September,
2003

Issue expenses in connection
with private placing

Premium arising from issue
of shares upon exercise of
share options on
26th February, 2004

Interim dividend paid

Net profit for the year
At 31st March, 2004

RZZEEZ_FMA—AH
R-FEZE_F+tH_-+H
TR AR E M 31T A D
BB e rEL 28 E
B BT RN
ABRENETR

FARBEFEA

i
i

||
A A
oL
[l

F T
F ANE!

+ il

A
A
EITRAREMETRN
RIS rESL
Z a8
FAREZ

=il

BITRX

RZZEZEMF_-_H_-+XH
PR 1T {6 13 RSO 1 3% 7T R 4D

FEA 2B
ENKRE
F AT

R-ZE2NF=A=+—8

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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20. f#4 (&)

N

Accumulated

Share  (loss) profit
premium 23t Total
IR 4 355 18 (E1]) &R #at
HK3'000 HK3'000 HK$'000
F#ET T T F#ET
53,280 = 53,280
(2,660) - (2,660)
(11,221) - (11,221)
- (1,079) (1,079)
39,399 (1,079) 38,320
57,542 = 57,542
(9,801) - (9,801)
14,529 = 14,529
- (2,131) (2,131)
= 7,508 7,508
101,669 4,298 105,967
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20. RESERVES (Continued)

21.

THE COMPANY (Continued)

The Company's reserves available for distribution represent
the share premium and accumulated profits. Under the
Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available
for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject
to the provisions of its Memorandum and/or Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
dividends can be distributed out of the share premium
and accumulated profits of the Company. As at 31st March,
2004, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to approximately HK$105,967,000 (at 31st
March, 2003: HK$38,320,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the year, the Group had the following significant
transactions with related parties:

Rental paid to Tungda Industrial N FRALE (£E) WHE2

Purchases of finished goods MRAL¥(%E)BE

from Tungda Industrial SLPX m

Purchases of materials for MRAL¥(%E)BE
production from Tungda EEDH
Industrial

Reimbursement of interest paid @R AT % (£@) K
by Tungda Industrial on behalf ~ R AE ¥ X878
of the Tungda Electrical

20. & (&)

AXRT (&)

ARRZ A RFEEERD SER R
A CRBIEFAEBEHSEMNE2R2ERATE (B
RIAR) - AR R Z BRAD 5 (B A 4 [ A% R 1
DIRSORARE - HAEZAARMEBERKR
MY, SEEGEREA ZARFTHRR - ARR
ZHEHIRKRSE AR RNEENRBEE
BBRP N B BEN 2 EE-RBEAQ A
ZHBERMA) BB AT AR BN E
R2HEMP RN R _EEME=ZA =
— B AR zAESRFEHEL A
105,967,000 T (ZEZE=F=A=+—
H : 38,320,000/ 7T) °

21. BEALXRS
FRNAEERBFEALTETUNTEAR

5
2004 2003
—E2TME —ET=F
Notes HK$'000 HKZ'000
[ ikza FAETT FETT
(a) 108 108
(®) - 3,110
(© - 2,897
(d) - 161

R K &4 ® B B8 # B 8 R 2 7
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21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Tungda Electrical entered into a sub-tenancy agreement
(“Sub-tenancy Agreement”) with Tungda Industrial on 1st
April, 2000. According to the Sub-tenancy Agreement,
Tungda Industrial agreed to sub-lease a portion of the
premises being part of Room 1903A, 19th Floor, Nanyang
Plaza, 57 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
("Rented Property”) to Tungda Electrical for a term
commencing from 1st April, 2000 to 31st March, 2002
(both days inclusive) at a monthly rental of HK$9,000
inclusive of other charges. On 28th May, 2002, Tungda
Electrical and Tungda Industrial entered into a tenancy
agreement to rent the Rented Property for a term of two
years commencing from 1st April, 2002 at a monthly rental
of HK$9,000 inclusive of other charges.

Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Siu Chun
jointly hold the entire beneficial interest in Tungda Industrial,
the ultimate holding company of the Company.

(b) During the year ended 31st March, 2003, the Group
purchased finished goods from Tungda Industrial on the
purchase cost of Tungda Industrial. Such kind of transactions
ceased after June 2002.

(c) During the year ended 31st March, 2003, the Group
purchased materials for production from Tungda Industrial
on the purchase cost of Tungda Industrial. Such kind of
transactions ceased after June 2002.

(d) The amount in prior year represented the reimbursement
of interest paid by Tungda Industrial to banks in respect of
the trust receipts loans granted by the banks to finance the
purchases of finished goods on behalf of Tungda Electrical.
The reimbursement of interest paid by Tungda Industrial on
behalf of the Tungda Electrical was carried out on cost
reimbursement basis. Such kind of transactions ceased after
June 2002.

In addition, in December 2003, the Company delegated
Standard Exceed Limited, the Company’s immediate holding
company, which is wholly and beneficially-owned by Tungda
Industrial, to negotiate a potential business opportunity with a
third party on behalf of the Company. In this regard, the Group
advanced an amount of HK$5,500,000 to Standard Exceed
Limited. As the Company decided not to proceed this potential
investment, Standard Exceed Limited had refunded the amount
of HK$5,500,000 to the Group on 30th December, 2003.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004 4%

21. BEAEXRS (&)

Mt

@ RAEER-_ZTTZZTFMNMA—HHERATL
¥ (&EE)TusfmE ([o8HE]) R
Bofithi RATE(RE) AERARAE
¥0HEMREBNES B BEESTRE
FEBI9ZI1903AEMHBoWE ([HE
¥|) FHH-_ZTTFMA-—HE-ZZT
—HF=A=+—B(REERMA) LLHM/"
A /9,000t (BIEEMER) RN
?:Eﬂﬂ_ﬂ—}\a RABERRATLE
(88 HEEREMEMI AR A
Ei%m:zz_imﬂ Bt AR
& Af9,0008 T (BIEHEMER) -

KEREE RERLERKRBERLELR
BARARRKERQATARATE (£@)
S Em e

(b) BE-_ZZ=F=RA=+—HIFE £&
BIEZRATE (RE) MRBRARNRAT
X (KB BEEKR ZEXHER_2F
ZERNARKL-

o BE—ZZ=F=A=+-RHLFE K&
BARA T (RE) MRBEKARRAT
X (KRB RBEERM -ZBRZIEN_-F
T oFRNAKREL-

(d) ZBENVEMNERAILE(EH) RRAXE
EBIRTTATHL A FEUUBR E R A BN IR B
HXMmESHANFRITOFB - (FTEBRART
¥ (RE) REREZE AN TR TVIEK ARE
NEEET - ZERZERZTZT_FA
Bk

o RZEE=F+=A AR AEFEARRF
2 B R P& A 7 Standard Exceed Limited (/3 &
AL (5B 2ERERBER)RKRAAFHEH—
BE=ZFERNECEEE - AEEBA
5,500,0007% 7t F Standard Exceed Limited ° F %
KRARREDHESTZIE B LKA Standard
Exceed LimitedER —_TZE=F+-_A=+HR
#5,500,0008 T T AKHE-
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22.

23.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at the balance sheet dates, the Group and the Company

had commitments for future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land

and buildings which fall due as follows:

—FR

Within one year

In the second to fifth year EZZFRFA
(BREEEMRF)

inclusive

22. A4

RaEE

N A

EiE

B AEBRARARREBEEHELIL R

BFOHAAROEERN AT HE B E
HOmEMNH R RKERSAEDT

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
KM LN

2004 2003 2004 2003
—gENE | —TT-F —BEWEF | -—TT=F
HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HKg'000
FEE FbT FEE FbT
605 1,409 383 957
- 558 - 383
605 1,967 383 1,340

The operating lease payments represent rentals payable

by the Group and the Company for certain of its office

premises and factories. Leases are generally negotiated

for a term of one to two years.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Amount contracted for but not provided
in the financial statements in respect of
— acquisition of property, plant and
equipment
— research and development expenditure

— advertising expenditure

EMFEHAE-

REMOHEHESEAREREQRIRE TH
REMERBEERMN 2B - BH—KEZ—
[

23. EXR HAiEE
2004 2003
—EENE —ET=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
MTAIEBEFTLHERRD
B 75 sk R B 2 OB
—WEME KR

B 17,866 13,606
—HERAX 756 6,758
-EERAX 1,780 5,671
20,402 26,035
R K 5 & ® B 8 #£ R & R 24 7
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23.

24.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS (Continued)

In December 2001, the Group entered into a joint venture
agreement with Shanghai Fudan University to establish a
joint venture company with limited liability in Shanghai,
the PRC. Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, the
Group should contribute the total registered capital of
HK$2,830,000
RMB3,000,000) of this new joint venture company and

approximately (equivalent to
share 80% of the equity interest in this new joint venture
company. Shanghai Fudan University should contribute
the relevant technical know-how to this new joint venture
company and share 20% equity interest in this new joint
venture company.

In May 2002, the Group entered into a supplementary
agreement with Shanghai Fudan University to extend the
establishment of the new joint venture company in
Shanghai, the PRC. Up to 31st March, 2004, the Group
has not yet established this new joint venture company
and did not contribute for any registered capital in this
regard.

POTENTIAL CLAIM

During the year ended 31st March, 2004, the Group
received a letter from an overseas manufacturer (the
“Manufacturer”) concerning the allegation of potential
infringement of certain patents rights of the Manufacturer.
Up to the date of this report, the Group did not receive
any claims from the Manufacturer.

The Company's legal advisor stated that they are not in a
position to comment on the likelihood of any proceedings
being issued against the Group. However, based on the
opinion of the directors and the advices from the
Company's patent attorney, the Group has not infringed
such patent rights of the Manufacturer. Accordingly, no
provision for this potential claim has been made.

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23.

24.

BEARRHMAE (&)
A—TEE—F+ - AEBEEPEFEBKX
BIvEEERZE RPE LBKRKZER
EAGELE - RESELERE A&E
ARG A B FEEAE £42,830,000%
7T (FE R ARE3,000,0007T) 2 & 67
BAR DIHZIAEEDESEKE LFIE
BREBRERZNG &0 EREE BRI
M DZFTAEEDFE 200/ #-

R-ZFZE_FHA AKEHELBEEKRE
RIS BRAETE BRI ZHE
EEE-BHE_FTTWUEF=-_A=1+—H &K
SERARIZIAEEDLE B RBUE
AAE fo] & A B S o

BHERE
HE_ZTZWMFE=RA=+—HILFE K&
EZE-REINRER ([REB]) 2K
H BEAKERERILAEH ZETEN
B-HEARSAHN AEEYERERE
BZEMRE-

ARBERBERER RENES BER
AAKEREHL ARBF LR AT
BREBFEAREARAENREAMAZE
#ASEYERLHEN ZAERENE-
W WERL R EEREREER-
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
("MPF Scheme") for all employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to
the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the MPF
Scheme.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme organised by the local government of
Shenzhen, the PRC. All employees in the PRC are entitled
to an annual pension equal to a fixed portion of their
individual final basic salaries at their retirement date. The
Group is required to make contributions to the retirement
scheme at the rate of 9% of the basic salaries of its

employees in the PRC.

During the year, the total cost of retirement benefits
contributions charged to the income statement of
HK$321,000 (2003: HK$337,000) represents
contributions to the schemes made by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the respective schemes. No
forfeited contributions may be used by the employer to

reduce the existing level of contributions.

25. RIKEF &

AEBREMAREREERIBHMELTE
T8 ([REEFE]) -ZRELFEE
ERBUYSEATR BAKEEENRAR
B-REZBRERE BEITREREAS
BREBRO ZEE L R AZRE S E
HR-AEERZBESTEAAELEE
ERREZTBEL B HK-

AEEF2EFBERINEMBTRLZE
BEFRAFE FAETREBHERNG
HERERRZBRREAFEREEL
flzEEERRES AEEARETEREEER

A F & 9% 2 b K (7] 7% R IR T B4 h 5K

—

F AR AW A TR K 2 R UK E F 4 5 AB B A
#321,0008 7L (Z 2 F =4 :337,000%8
TL)  REEAREBEIRB B ERG 2 E
EhERMZEAEEL o HAE-BETHE
{8 F 4 0% WA SR BB E EL3R A R UK F o
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BREFAESRBS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting
of shareholders of Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) will be held at 2nd Floor, Shui On Centre, 8
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, on Thursday, 11th
November, 2004 at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements
and the reports of the directors and auditors for the year
ended 31st March, 2004;

2. To re-elect directors and authorize the board of directors
(the "Board”) to fix the remuneration of the directors;

3. To accept the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditors of the Company; and

4. To declare the final dividend.

As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass the
following ordinary and special resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

5. '"THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (c) of this Resolution and the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "GEM
Listing Rules”), the exercise by the directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot,
issue and deal with additional shares in the capital
of the Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require the
exercise of such power be and is hereby generally
and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall

authorise the directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) to make or
grant offers, agreements, and options which might
require the exercise of such power after the end of
the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined);

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(o) the

aggregate nominal amount of share capital

allotted, or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be allotted (whether pursuant to the exercise of
options or otherwise) by the directors of the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this
Resolution, otherwise than pursuant to:

0)
(iD)

(iii)

(V)

a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined);

any share option scheme or similar arrangement
of the Company for the time being adopted for
the grant or issue to officers and/or employees
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
of shares or rights to acquire shares of the
Company; or

any scrip dividend or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment of shares in lieu of
the whole or part of a dividend on shares of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company; or

the exercise of rights of subscription or
conversion under the terms of any warrants
issued by the Company or any securities which
are convertible into shares; and shall not exceed
20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the
share capital of the Company in issue as at the
date of passing this Resolution and the said
approval in paragraph (a) shall be limited
accordingly;

(d) for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant Period”
means the period from the passing of this Resolution
until whichever is the earlier of:

0)

(iD)

the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by law or by the Company's Articles of
Association or any applicable law to be held; or

©

(d)

ARRAEBEFERBEARZR (@B
FRBERE R HEBEMFRERE (Twm
R IE R AR T (8 S H At R A i A 3
F)ZBRAEERRE TEBBANRE
REBBERAARFRCDETRAEE
#EE2000 - T (a)BR AT ALHL A TRA R It
BR 1) - M AR 45 TSt BiC 2% 3B BR Ob

() #HEEERTX:

(i) ARAERRARNDE R, HHE
EFRMEBEAR S RBEN &
BERHKBEITRMHDARERR
A% 0 2 #E T T BR A% 2 1 {7 B AR
MBI AU HE %

(i) ERARK BB HRIEARA
Z 7 A AE A E A2 A BRI AR E BT B AR
MUARBARRB RD 2 2B ER
DIRBZ B ZHE 3%

(v) ITREMAEENRE R ATER SR
D Z AR R B FBEITEMRRAEE
AT EBARN 2 EME S

RARZBRM S [BRARHE] BRAR
EREBBEE T &FERIEHR:

() ARATERRBEASHER:

(i) BEMEPIRAR T2 A EE
BRI AL 8 AUE IR E A
REAAARATERRBEFAEZ
HARR fE o ¢ 3K
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(i) the revocation or variation of the authority given
under this Resolution by an ordinary resolution
of the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting;

and “"Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for
a period fixed by the directors of the Company to
holders of shares of the Company on the register on
a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings
of such shares as at that date (subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the directors of
the Company may deem necessary or expedient in
relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to
any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or
the requirements of any recognised regulatory body
or any stock exchange in, any territory applicable to
the Company).”

6. “THAT:

(a

(b)

subject to paragraph (b) of this Resolution, the
exercise by the directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the
powers of the Company to repurchase shares in the
capital of the Company in accordance with all
applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited or of any other stock exchange
recognized for this purpose by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong under the Hong
Kong Code on Share Repurchases (as amended from
time to time), be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the
Company to be repurchased by the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall
not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount
of the share capital of the Company in issue at the
date of passing this Resolution, and the said approval
shall be limited accordingly; and

TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(c) for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant Period”
means the period from the passing of this Resolution
until whichever is the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by law or by the Company's articles of
association or any applicable law to be held; or

(i) the revocation or variation of the authority given
under this Resolution by an ordinary resolution
of the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.”

“THAT conditional upon the passing of Ordinary
Resolutions No. 4 and 5 set out in this notice convening
this meeting, the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital of the Company that may be allotted, issued or
dealt with or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be
allotted, issued or dealt with by the directors of the
Company pursuant to and in accordance with the mandate
granted under Ordinary Resolution No. 4 be and is hereby,
subject to the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules,
increased and extended by the addition thereto of the
aggregate nominal amount of the shares capital of the
Company repurchased by the Company pursuant to and
in accordance with the mandate granted under Ordinary
Resolution No. 5 since the granting of such repurchase
mandate, provided that such amount shall not exceed
10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company in issue as at the date of passing this
Resolution.”

“THAT subject to and conditional upon the GEM Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
granting the listing of and permission to deal in the
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares”) in the share
capital of the Company (representing a maximum of 10%
of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of passing this resolution) which may be issued
pursuant to the exercise of options granted under the
Company's share option scheme adopted on 12th July,
2002 (“Scheme”) or any other share option scheme of
the Company, the refreshing of the scheme limit on grant

7.

(0 BMARBEME [AEME]EARZE
REBBEE T KFERIEHE:

() ARFTERRBEFASHER:

(i) BEMEPIRARR 2D FHEE
B2 40 R S AT a8 FDE B R E A
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BRBEHHEHIAER R REZRR
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of options under the Scheme of the Company up to 10%
of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of passing this resolution (excluding options previously
granted, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in
accordance with the Scheme or any other share option
scheme of the Company) (“Refreshed Mandate Limit")
be and is hereby approved and any director of the
Company be and is hereby authorized to do such act and
execute such document to effect and implement the
Refreshed Mandate Limit.”

SPECIAL RESOLUTION
“THAT:

(a) the Articles of Association of the Company be and
are hereby amended by:

(i) inserting the following new definition of
“associate” in Article 2:
“associate” the meaning attributed to it
in the rules of the Designated
Stock Exchange.

(i) deleting the words “a recognised clearing house
within the meaning of Section 2 of the Securities
and Futures (Clearing House) Ordinance of Hong
Kong or" in the definition of “clearing house” in
Article 2.

(iii) deleting the existing definition of “Subsidiary and
Holding Company” in Article 2 and replacing
these with the following new definition:

“Subsidiary and
Holding
Company”

the meanings attributed to
them in the rules of the
Designated Stock Exchange.

(iv) re-numbering existing Article 76 as Article 76(1);
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(v) inserting the following as new Article 76(2): (v) MATXIERFTABIET6(2)MK:
“(2) Where the Company has knowledge that [Q)MHARREBEEMBRERE
any Member is, under the rules of the BEEFRXZAHRBNEARAE
Designated Stock Exchange, required to NAEAFERBZERER
abstain from voting on any particular RHAXBRHER AR FEM
resolution of the Company or restricted to HERBRREXNEZEIRY
voting only for or only against any particular S AMEMBBERREIERE
resolution of the Company, any votes cast EHmMAEZRTERRE 2

by or on behalf of such Member in REBTTEHH-]

contravention of such requirement or
restriction shall not be counted.”

(vi) deleting the words “not less than seven (7) clear (vi) B4R 288k HxE —AN[T
days but not more than fourteen (14) clear days DPRBRRARERITEBAIRE(7)
before the date of the general meeting” in the HEAZRETEO4HR]IFa"
last sentence of Article 88 and replacing A LA T B A6 SCERAR -

therewith the following proviso:

“provided that the minimum length of the period, MEEHBHEBRS 2 KEHRKD
during which such Notice(s) are given, shall be REDB WRBITEHEBERY
at least seven (7) days and that (if the Notices EERREASRETBRHBIER
are submitted after the dispatch of notice of the BE AR EMBEE ZHRAR
general meeting appointed for such election) BUTAHBEREZETRRRER
the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall EHEDEMR RENEITEH
commence on the day after the dispatch of the BRERAXEZAMEG)BHER]

notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date of such general meeting.”

(vii) deleting the existing Article 103 in its entirety (vii) MIBRIR B AMAIFE 1035230 WA

and replacing therewith the following new Article THIFTARBISE 103K R

103:

“103.(1) A Director shall not vote (nor be [103. (DEEFTEHI ARSI
counted in the quorum) on any CIEMBBEATHEBES
resolution of the Board approving any AERZZEMENHE
contract or arrangement or any other HEs B E b 2 2
proposal in which he or any of his MEFGREARRE
associates is materially interested, but M/ AEEAH
this prohibition shall not apply to any A e R BR R AR
of the following matters namely: TFIER] A :

R K o4 & B 8 # B 8 R & 7
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any contract or arrangement for
the giving to such Director or his
associate(s) any security or
indemnity in respect of money
lent by him or any of his
associates or obligations incurred
or undertaken by him or any of
his associates at the request of
or for the benefit of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries;

any contract or arrangement for
the giving of any security or
indemnity to a third party in
respect of a debt or obligation of
the Company or any of its
subsidiaries for which the Director
or his associate(s) has himself/
themselves assumed
responsibility in whole or in part
whether alone or jointly under a
guarantee or indemnity or by the
giving of security;

any contract or arrangement
concerning an offer of shares or
debentures or other securities of
or by the Company or any other
company which the Company
may promote or be interested in
for subscription or purchase,
where the Director or his
associate(s) is/are or is/are to be
interested as a participant in the
underwriting or sub-underwriting
of the offer;
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(D) any contract or arrangement in

(B

@

which the Director or his
associate(s) is/are interested in
the same manner as other holders
of shares or debentures or other
securities of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by virtue only
of his/their interest in shares or
debentures or other securities of
the Company;

any contract or arrangement
concerning any other company in
which the Director or his
associate(s) is/are interested only,
whether directly or indirectly, as
an officer or executive or a
shareholder other than a company
in which the Director and/or his
associate(s) is/are beneficially
interested in five (5) per cent or
more of the issued shares or of
the voting rights of any class of
shares of such company (or any
third company through which his
interest or that of any of his
associates is derived); or

any proposal concerning the
adoption, modification or
operation of a share option
scheme, a pension fund or
retirement, death or disability
benefits scheme or other
arrangement which relates both
to directors, his associates and
employees of the Company or of
any of its subsidiaries and does
not provide in respect of any
Director, or his associate(s), as
such any privilege or advantage
not accorded to the employees
to which such scheme or fund
relates.

D) EExHEBEAL

B
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(2) A company shall be deemed to be a () WEER HHEBEA
company in which a Director and/or TR (BERRED
his associate(s) owns five (5) per cent R)EEIBEERBN
or more if and so long as (but only if EnBZ R RMEAE
and so long as) he and/or his Al AR AR sk % A A (3
associates (either directly or indirectly) 1%/ 1% & kA {a] 18 2 Bt
are the holders of or beneficially BATZHERBAELT
interested in five (5) per cent or more EZEME=FAA)
of any class of the equity share capital BRRzZEREEBSZH
of such company or of the voting rights (5%) 3% LA E# 5 - Al#%
available to members of such company NEIWARIEBRE R =%
(or of any third company through BeHMBATHEERD
which his/their interest or that of any ZH(5%)sk A Rz
of his associates is derived). For the NRBARME EF
purpose of this paragraph there shall HHEHBEATERED
be disregarded any shares held by a XAATIREXZFTIAT
Director or his associate(s) as bare or AHBEBRRNFHE 2
custodian trustee and in which he or EABMEATTEE R
any of them has no beneficial interest, a2 ERKRH TS
any shares comprised in a trust in FEBBEATEAEFRH
which the interest of the Director or R RERES TR
his associate(s) is/are in reversion or mZER(BEERRE
remainder if and so long as some other FE At A 1375 #EUER
person is entitled to receive the ZIEFEZWA) Z M
income thereof, and any shares WA D B F o KB
comprised in an authorised unit trust BATENBMRFEA
scheme in which the Director or his FOHBRDZARE
associate(s) is/are interested only as L EFEET 8l 2 E K
a unit holder and any shares which A& - DA R 3 B B AR
carry no voting right at general RREREERBRRK
meetings and very restrictive dividend BB 7R B A A e IR
and return of capital right. B —B Tt HE-

(3) Where a company in which a Director (3) MERRHEBEA
and/or his associate(s) holds five (5) TR-—RXEEREED
per cent or more is/are materially Z T (5%)3k LA F#Ew 2
interested in a transaction, then that NEERGHHEBEEK
Director and/or his associate(s) shall Ba AIZEER %
also be deemed materially interested HE8 AT REBRIER
in such transaction. ZER SR EEEAE

%o
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(4) If any question shall arise at any
meeting of the Board as to the
materiality of the interest of a Director
(other than the Chairman of the
meeting) or his associate(s) or as to
the entitlement of any Director (other
than such chairman) to vote and such
question is not resolved by his
voluntarily agreeing to abstain from
voting, such question shall be referred
to the chairman of the meeting and
his ruling in relation to such other
Director shall be final and conclusive
except in a case where the nature or
extent of the interest of the Director
and/or his associate(s) concerned as
known to such Director has not been
fairly disclosed to the Board. If any
question as aforesaid shall arise in
respect of the chairman of the meeting
such question shall be decided by a
resolution of the Board (for which
purpose such chairman shall not vote
thereon) and such resolution shall be
final and conclusive except in a case
where the nature or extent of the
interest of such chairman as known to
such chairman has not been fairly
disclosed to the Board.”

(b) the new articles of association of the Company,
consolidating all of the changes referred to in this
resolution and in the form produced to the meeting,
be and are hereby adopted with immediate effect in
replacement of the existing articles of association of
Company.”

By Order of the Board
Chu Chien Tung
Chairman

15th October, 2004
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Executive directors: HITEF:

Mr. Chu Chien Tung KEREE
Mr. Chu Chick Kei KREREE
Mr. Chu Sen Hei KEBLTE
Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona BHEFLL
Non-executive director: FHNITEE:
Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony BB S+
Independent non-executive directors: BUFNITEF:
Mr. Hong Yong Hwan HEREE
Mr. Zhu Lei Bo KBKEE
Ms. Wu King Yin AR+
Principal place of business: FELEME:
Room 1007-8, 10th Floor e

Harcourt House E

39 Gloucester Road HLITE395%
Wanchai BERKE

Hong Kong 101 1007-8%
Notes: Wt 5t -

1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled
to appoint one or more than one proxy to attend and vote on
his/her behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
Proxy forms must be deposited with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Standard Registrar
Limited, at Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre,
56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not
less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the
Meeting or adjourned Meeting. The completion and delivery of
the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and
voting at the meeting if you so wish.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 8th November, 2004 to Wednesday, 10th November,
2004 both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attending the
meeting convened by the above, all share certificates with
completed transfer forms must be lodged with the Company's
Hong Kong Branch Registrar, Standard Registrars Limited at the
above address not later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 5th November,
2004.

An Explanatory Statement in relation to Ordinary Resolutions No.
5 and a circular with further information will be sent to
shareholders together with the Company’s Annual Report.

Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one
such persons may vote at the meeting, either personally or by
proxy, in respect of such share as if he/she were solely entitled
thereto; but if more than one such joint holders are present at
the meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the said persons
so present whose name stands first on the register of members
of the Company in respect of such share shall alone be entitled
to vote in respect thereof.
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